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P-R-O-C-E-E-D-I-N-G-S 

Februa~ 28, 2012 

9:30 A.M. 

* * * * * * * * * 

MR. DURDEN: Good morning. If you 

7 don't mind taking your seats, we'll go ahead and 

8 get started. 

9 At this time I call Docket No. 2732 

10 to order; the time is approximately 9:35 a.m. My 

11 name is David Durden, Deputy Commissioner for 

12 Public Affairs. And by Commissioner's Order 

13 No. 12-0154 I've been delegated the authority to 

14 conduct the hearing in Docket No. 2732. Docket 

15 No. 2732 is the 2012 Texas title periodic hearing 

16 concerning the adoption of rules and other matters 

17 relating to the regulation of the business of title 

18 insurance, and today we're considering proposed 

19 amendments to the Basic Title Manual. 

20 Notice of this hearing was published 

21 in the Texas Register, January 27, 2012. And I ask 

22 those of you who wish to speak on any of the 

23 proposed items, fill out one of these witness 

24 cards, identify the item or items on which you wish 

25 to speak and give it to the deputy clerk who just 

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE 
333 GUADALUPE, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78714-9104 

9 



10 

1 

2 

3 

4 

stepped down from the podium. When you come up to 

the podium, the mike in the center, please identify 

yourself and the agenda item on which you wish to 

speak. And if you would, please, avoid any 

5 repetitious comments. 

6 The order of presentation, there is 

7 an agenda list available on the back table in the 

8 back of the room and, in general, the items are 

9 grouped by the sponsoring party. 

10 We have received letters from 

11 sponsoring parties withdrawing several of their 

12 proposals, and please announce any withdrawals in 

13 your presentation. I also note that while we 

14 received a letter from the Texas Land Title 

15 Association requesting withdrawal of Agenda 

16 Item 2012-40, the Notice of Hearing clearly states 

17 that we will also consider additional modifications 

18 to P-53, including withdrawal. We will take that 

19 matter up -- take up the matter of further 

20 modifications or the repeal of P-53 at the 

21 conclusion of the TDI presentation. 

22 So at this time, I would say welcome 

23 again, good morning, and I'll ask the parties, the 

24 sponsors, I guess, to identify themselves for the 

25 record, please. 
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MR. RUTLEDGE: Good morning, Deputy 

Commissioner Durden. My name is Tom Rutledge; I'm 

with the Austin law firm of Sneed, Vine & Perry. 

We're outside counsel to the Texas Land Title 

Association. With me today is Mr. Aaron Day, who 

is counsel and chief government relations with 

TLTA, and he will also be joining me in the 

presentations today. 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

Any other sponsors? 

MS. FRYER: I'm Catherine Fryer, 

representing Stewart Title Guaranty Company. 

MR. DURDEN: Good morning. 

MR. BURNER: Good morning, Your 

Honor. I'm Burnie Burner with the Austin law firm 

16 of Mitchell Williams and I'm here today with my 

17 partner Bruce McCandless, and it's our pleasure to 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

represent the Texas Title Guaranty Association. We 

have three items on your agenda. And I would like 

to announce that we're withdrawing Nos. 44 and 46, 

so we only have one left. Thank you for your time. 

MR. DURDEN: Good morning. 

MR. BEDELL: Good morning. I'm 

Kergin Bedell with the Office of Public Insurance 

Counsel. 
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2 

:MR. DURDEN: Good morning. 

MS. BURGESS: Good morning. I'm 

12 

3 Linda Burgess; I'm outside counsel for Alamo Title. 

4 I'm with the Winstead law firm. I have one agenda 

5 item, and that is 47. 

6 

7 

:MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

:MR. HOPSON: My name is Merritt 

8 Hopson; I'm with the Fidelity National Title Group. 

9 I have two agenda items, No. 48 and 49. 

10 

11 

:MR. DURDEN: Thank you; good morning. 

:MR. CARTER: Rob Carter with the 

12 title office staff. I'll be presenting on Items 71 

13 through 91, and also on the P-53 issue. 

14 

15 

:MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

Any other parties, sponsors, need to 

16 identify themselves? Great; thank you. 

17 At this time I would like to calIon 

18 Mr. Rob Carter, with the TDI title office, to 

19 provide a brief background on the information that 

20 we'll be considering today. 

21 :MR. CARTER: Thank you, Mr. Durden. 

22 Although the Notice of Hearing lists 91 agenda 

23 items, the great majority of these will be 

24 housekeeping in nature, non-substantive. We'll 

25 either be correcting typographical errors or 
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1 revising formats, changing titles of some insuring 

2 forms and providing some cross references. I think 

3 that's true of most of the sponsoring parties, in 

4 that the majority of the items today will be 

5 housekeeping. So, although, there are officially 

6 91 agenda items, this will go faster than you might 

7 think, at least on the majority of the items. 

8 

9 

MR. DURDEN: All right. Thank you. 

MR. CARTER: I would like to 

10 acknowledge Bernice Kennedy, with the title office 

11 staff, for the great help she's been in working 

12 with the sponsors to reach a consensus and 

13 agreement on some of those housekeeping matters. 

14 Thank you. 

15 MR. DURDEN: All right. Thank you, 

16 Bernice. 

17 All right. So we'll proceed with 

18 the agenda. And at this time, what I would like to 

19 do is calIon Mr. Rutledge to present the Texas 

20 Land Title Association proposals. And what we'll 

21 do is take comments after each item, so we'll just 

22 go one by one. 

23 MR. RUTLEDGE: Thank you, Mr. Durden. 

24 Is it all right with you if I make my presentation 

25 here? 
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MR. DURDEN: That's fine. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: Thank you. 

1 

2 

3 We have 20 agenda items that are the 

4 first 20, 1 through 20. And our witness on behalf 

5 of the Texas Land Title Association is Ms. Janet 

6 Minke, and she will carry us through each of those 

7 agenda items. 

8 But, for the record, what we have 

9 done is withdrawn a couple of those and a couple 

10 of others. And I can just state for the record at 

11 this point in time, we have withdrawn Agenda Item 

12 2012-10, Agenda Item 2012-15, Agenda Item 2012-34, 

13 Agenda Item 2012-40 and Agenda Item 2012-43. 

14 And with that as a beginning, I would 

15 turn the mike over to Ms. Minke and she can talk 

16 about the first 20 agenda items that we have filed. 

17 MR. DURDEN: All right. And, again, 

18 as I stated in my opening comments, I think 40 is 

19 the one that we will consider at the conclusion of 

20 the TDI testimony. So I just want to make that 

21 clear, that we will have discussion on Agenda 

22 Item 40. 

23 Ms. Minke, good morning. 

24 MS. MINKE: Good morning, Deputy 

25 Commissioner Durden. Thank you for allowing me to 
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1 come before you today. I am Janet Minke; I'm 

2 representing the Texas Land Title Association, 

3 speaking as a proponent of Agenda Items 2012-1 

4 through 2012-20. 

5 The first agenda item, 2012-1, amends 

6 the Form T-7, Commitment for Title Insurance, to 

7 correct typographical errors and conform the 

8 language to other rules and forms in the Basic 

9 Manual. It is designed to remove the numbers 800 

10 from the toll-free numbers, since we now have 

11 toll-free numbers that begin with other digits than 

12 that; it allows that to be a blank to be filled in. 

13 It amends throughout the form the word Owner to 

14 Owner's when referring to the Owner's Title Policy, 

15 as the name was changed in 2008; and Mortgagee to 

16 Loan in several locations for the same purpose. 

17 MR. DURDEN: All right. Thank you. 

18 Any comments on this proposal, 

19 Item 2012-1? 

20 MR. CARTER: No objections from title 

21 office staff. 

22 MR. DURDEN: All right. Anyone else 

23 wishing to comment on the first proposal, 2012-1? 

24 Back to you, Ms. Minke. 

25 MS. MINKE: All right. Agenda 
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1 Item 2012-2 amends the Form T-l, Owner's Policy of 

2 Title Insurance, to correct margins and to conform 

3 the language to other rules and forms in the Basic 

4 Manual. The correction on this one is simply to 

5 indent a series of subparagraphs so that they 

6 appear in the proper location in the printed jacket 

7 form. They are paragraphs that appear under 

8 Exceptions from Coverage, Item No.4. 

9 MR. DURDEN: Thank you. I was 

10 wondering about that one. 

11 

12 

13 

14 office staff. 

15 

MS. MINKE: It's hard to find. 

MR. DURDEN: Any comments on -

MR. CARTER: No objection from TDI 

MR. DURDEN: Anyone else wishing to 

16 comment on Agenda Item 2? 

17 All right. 

18 MS. MINKE: Agenda Item 2012-3 amends 

19 the Form T-2, Loan Policy of Title Insurance, to 

20 correct margins; it amends the term Mortgagee to 

21 Loan in one location on Schedule A; it resolves a 

22 formatting error by indenting numbered 

23 subparagraphs under Definition of Terms, (e) (i) (E) . 

24 MR. CARTER: No objection from TDI 

25 office staff. 
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1 MR. DURDEN: All right. I don't see 

2 a line of people behind you, so I think no other 

3 comments. 

4 MS. MINKE: Agenda Item 2012-4 amends 

5 the Form T-43, Texas Reverse Mortgage Endorsement, 

6 to conform the language to other rules and forms In 

7 the Basic Manual. It amends the term Mortgagee 

8 Policy to Loan Policy in two locations. 

9 

10 

11 office staff. 

12 

13 

MR. DURDEN: All right. 

MR. CARTER: No objection from title 

MR. DURDEN: All right. 

MS. MINKE: Agenda Item 2012-5 amends 

14 the T-42, Equity Loan Mortgage Endorsement, to 

15 conform the language to other rules and forms in 

16 the Basic Manual. It amends the term Mortgagee 

17 Policy to Loan Policy; it deletes the phrase And 

18 Stipulations in two locations; and it corrects the 

19 subsection references in Paragraph 1. 

20 MR. CARTER: No objections from title 

21 office staff. 

22 

23 

MR. DURDEN: All right. Item 6. 

MS. MINKE: Agenda Item 2012-6 amends 

24 the Form T-42.1, Supplemental Coverage Equity Loan 

25 Mortgage Endorsement, to conform the language to 
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1 other rules and forms in the Basic Manual. It 

2 amends the term Mortgagee Policy to Loan Policy, 

3 and deletes the phrase 'And Stipulations in two 

4 locations. 

5 MR. CARTER: No objection from title 

6 office staff. 

7 

8 

MR. DURDEN: 'Any other comments? 

MS. MINKE: Agenda Item 2012-7 amends 

9 the Form T-38, Mortgagee Policy of Title Insurance 

10 P-9.b. (3), Endorsement, to conform the language to 

11 other rules and forms in the Basic Manual. It 

12 amends the term Mortgagee Policy to Loan Policy, 

13 and it amends the year reference 19 blank to 

14 20 blank. 

15 

16 office staff. 

17 

18 

MR. CARTER: No objections from title 

MR. DURDEN: All right. 

MS. MINKE: Agenda Item 2012-8 amends 

19 the Form T-98, Limited Pre-foreclosure Policy, to 

20 correct typographical errors that occur in the 

21 Basic Manual. It amends the term Mortgagee to 

22 Loan, and corrects an error by adding the word Or 

23 in Conditions No. 2(b). 

24 

25 

MR. DURDEN: 'Any comments? 

MR. CARTER: The title office has no 
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1 comments on that one but will note that the same 

2 issue is covered in Stewart's Agenda Item 55. 

3 MS. MINKE: Under 2012-7 is the one 

4 that also is addressed in Stewart's Agenda Item 

5 2012-55. 

6 MR. CARTER: I'm sorry, and you were 

7 on eight. 

8 

9 

10 eight. 

11 

12 

MS. MINKE: I moved to eight. 

MR. CARTER: Okay. We're okay with 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. 

MS. MINKE: Agenda Item 2012-9 

13 amends the Form T-46, Texas Residential Limited 

14 Coverage Junior Mortgagee Policy, Equity Line of 

15 Credit/Variable Rate Endorsement, to conform the 

16 language to other rules and forms in the Basic 

17 Manual, and it amends the term Mortgagee to Loan in 

18 appropriate locations. 

19 

20 office. 

21 

22 

MR. CARTER: No objection from title 

MR. DURDEN: All right. 

MS. MINKE: Agenda Item 2012-10 has 

23 been withdrawn. 

24 Item 2012-11 amends Rate Rule R-15, 

25 Owner Policy Endorsement, to correct typographical 
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1 errors and to conform to language to other rules 

2 and forms in the Basic Manual. It amends the term 

3 Owner Policy to Owner's Policy, corrects in one 

4 location the word Endorsement to Endorsements. 

5 MR. CARTER: No objection from title 

6 office staff. 

7 MR. DURDEN: All right. Proceed to 

8 2012-12. 

9 MS. MINKE: Item 2012-12 amends Rate 

10 Rule R-17, Policy Forms for Use by United States 

11 Government, to conform the language to other rules 

12 and forms in the Basic Manual. It amends the term 

13 Owner Policy to Owner's Policy, and corrects the 

14 reference in the second paragraph to Rule P-66. 

15 

16 office staff. 

17 

18 

MR. CARTER: No objection from title 

MR. DURDEN: All right. 

MS. MINKE: Item 2012-13 amends Rate 

19 Rule R-22, Owner and Leasehold Policies, to conform 

20 the language to other rules and forms in the Basic 

21 Manual. It amends the term Owner Policy to Owner's 

22 Policies and corrects the reference from R-3 to 

23 P-66. 

24 MR. CARTER: No objection from title 

25 office staff. 
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2 

MR. DURDEN: All right. 

MS. MINKE: Agenda Item 2012-14 

3 amends Procedural Rule P-1w, regarding the 

4 definition of Premium, to correct typographical 

5 errors in the Basic Manual. It amends the term 

21 

6 it deletes the term State Board and substitutes the 

7 word Department, and corrects an error by changing 

8 the word Including to Includes. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

been 

MR. 

MS. 

withdrawn. 

MR. 

MR. 

DURDEN: All right. 

MINKE: Agenda Item 2012-15 has 

DURDEN: Let me make sure --

CARTER: Excuse me. On Item 14, 

14 we do see an additional typo that we'll change. In 

15 the second line, we'll change the word Or to For 

16 Of to Fori otherwise we're in agreement, just a 

17 typo. 

18 

19 

20 of --

21 

MR. DURDEN: On the second line --

MS. KENNEDY: Includes the charges 

MR. CARTER: The second line of 

22 Agenda Item 2012-14, where it's P-1, the 

23 Definitions, Subsection w, we'll change, In the 

24 second line, to read Insurance Code includes the 

25 charges for title examination. 
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MR. DURDEN: Okay. 1 

2 MS. MINKE: TLTA has no objection to 

3 that change. 

4 

5 

6 withdrawn. 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

MS. MINKE: Item 2012-15 has been 

7 Item 2012-16 amends Form T-56, OWner 

8 Policy Rejection Form, to correct typographical 

9 errors and conform the language to other rules and 

10 forms in the Basic Manual. It amends the term 

11 OWner Policy to Owner's Policies, it adds a form 

12 number, and it corrects references to various 

13 sections in the Insurance Code. It also has some 

14 changes to grammar in order to make it more 

15 understandable to the reader. 

16 

17 office. 

18 

19 

MR. CARTER: No objections from title 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

MS. MINKE: Item 2012-17, amends 

20 Procedural Rule P-70(b) , regarding Cancellation 

21 Fees, Fees for Services Rendered, to correct a 

22 typographical error in the Basic Manual. It 

23 corrects an error by changing the word Complied to 

24 Complies. 

25 MR. CARTER: No objection from title 
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1 office staff. 

2 MS. MINKE: Item 2012-18 amends 

3 Form T-14, First Loss Endorsement, to conform the 

4 language to other rules and forms in the Basic 

5 Manual. It removes the obsolete words And 

6 Stipulations. 

7 MR. CARTER: No objection from title 

8 office staff. 

9 MS. MINKE: Item 2012-19 amends 

10 Form T-16, Mortgagee Policy Aggregation 

11 Endorsement, to conform the language to other rules 

12 and forms in the Basic Manual. It removes the 

13 obsolete words And Stipulations. 

14 MR. CARTER: No objection from title 

15 office staff. 

16 MS. MINKE: And, finally, 

17 Item 2012-20 amends Form T-53, Texas Limited 

18 Coverage Residential Chain of Policy Combined 

19 Schedule, to conform the language to other rules 

20 and forms of the Basic Manual, correct margins, and 

21 correct a reference to a 12-month chain of title by 

22 making the period of time reference to be not more 

23 than 60 months. It also corrects formatting errors 

24 in the headings of the form. 

25 MR. CARTER: No objection from title 
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1 office staff. 

2 MR. DURDEN: All right. Thank you, 

3 Ms. Minke. 

4 All right. Mr. Rutledge, if you 

5 want to proceed. 

6 MR. RUTLEDGE: Thank you. First of 

7 all, I would like to say that TLTA would like to 

8 thank Mr. Carter and all of the TDI staff, 

9 Mr. Burner and the Texas Title Insurance Guaranty 

10 Association, Ms. Beck and Mr. Bedell of the Office 

11 of Public Insurance Counsel, and the attorneys and 

12 industry members with whom we have worked for their 

13 courtesy and their contributions to our efforts. 

14 We appreciate the time that they spent in working 

15 with us and meeting with us and talking over these 

16 agenda items, and I think and hope that, as a 

17 result of that, we will be able to get through this 

18 docket fairly efficiently. 

19 The first agenda item that we have 

20 filed is Agenda Item 2012-21, and it does include 

21 some substantially new substantive provisions. 

22 Both House Bill 4338, which was passed in 2009, and 

23 House Bill 2406, which was passed by the 

24 legislature last year, are pertinent to Agenda 

25 Items 2012-21 through 2012-37. All of those agenda 
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1 items that I just mentioned are intended to 

2 implement the two bills that I just referred to. 

3 Those bills require that title 

4 insurance agents maintain unencumbered assets to 

5 meet minimum capitalization standards in amounts 

6 based upon the county in which the agent's 

7 principal office is located. Due to the passage of 

8 time since the original passage of House Bill 4338, 

9 this Agenda Item 21 updates the schedule for the 

10 accumulation of unencumbered assets, beginning in 

11 2013. 

12 Subsection II(D) is a safety valve 

13 provision that provides that the required 

14 capitalization amounts will take effect six months 

15 after the Commissioner adopts the form and 

16 procedures for use of the surety bond and that if 

17 the schedule dates occur before the expiration of 

18 that six-month period, then the schedule dates 

19 shall be extended so as to give effect to this 

20 safety valve provision. 

21 What that essentially means is that 

22 the Commissioner has enough flexibility, both under 

23 the statute and as a result of the draft of this 

24 rule, that depending upon when her order comes out, 

25 assuming she adopts this agenda item, she can 
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1 adjust the date so that the six-month delayed 

2 period of time will be a practical matter and will 

3 not, basically, be unworkable. 

4 And that brings me to a general 

5 comment with respect to all of the agenda items 

6 which the Commissioner may wish to adopt. 

7 Typically, we request that there be a delayed 

8 effective date after the Commissioner's order that 

9 will enable us to get the text of anything that's 

10 adopted and educate and illustrate to our members 

11 how they are to handle the new forms or the amended 

12 forms or rules. 

13 And so we would request at this time 

14 that, generally speaking, we would like an 

15 effective date that is 60 days after the 

16 Commissioner's order is finally entered -- or I 

17 should say, at least a minimum of 60 days 

18 thereafter. And that general effective date can be 

19 dovetailed with Section II(D) of this particular 

20 rule so that they can be, basically, reconciled. 

21 It's going to depend upon when the order comes out, 

22 and we didn't want to have that period of time so 

23 short that we wouldn't be able to -- people would 

24 be blind sided by having to comply with the 

25 schedule. 
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1 MR. DURDEN: And that's what you 

2 meant by unworkable? 

3 MR. RUTLEDGE: That's correct. If 

4 the dates are such that -- that we have set forth 

5 in the schedule, depending upon when the order 

6 comes out, that they're too short or they're 

7 actually behind us, then the Commissioner has the 

8 ability to amend the rule and amend the schedule so 

9 that it's a workable schedule, in terms of the 

10 timing. It's a little tricky but that's the case. 

11 Now, the statutory discretion which 

12 the Commissioner has is Section 2651.012(j). And 

13 the legislature in House Bill 4338 put that in the 

14 statute knowingly, to make sure that the 

15 Commissioner would have discretion so that she 

16 could adjust these dates so that they would be 

17 workable. 

18 Last year by passing House Bill 2406, 

19 the legislature provided another means to establish 

20 and maintain minimum capitalization requirements 

21 that had not been included in the original House 

22 Bill 4338. The legislature authorized the 

23 establishment of solvency accounts that may be 

24 accumulated over time, based upon making a bank 

25 deposit in a solvency account for each title policy 
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1 issued by the agent; that is, for each policy 

2 that's issued, there will be a deposit. And the 

3 statute sets forth what the amount of that deposit 

4 is. 

5 And then it provides in 

6 Subsection III of this rule, and this is also 

7 consistent with the statute, a method whereby a 

8 title agent may certify to the Department its 

9 compliance with the minimum capitalization 

10 requirements. 

11 In the event the agent chooses to 

12 comply by maintaining the solvency account that was 

13 first authorized by the passage of House Bill 2604, 

14 the agent must provide notice of its compliance to 

15 the Department at the time of filing its license 

16 renewal. 

17 So this particular rule, as are the 

18 others that I mentioned earlier, are intended to 

19 dovetail with the changes to the statute made by 

20 both Bills 4338 and 2604, and implement both of 

21 those bills, so that the capitalization 

22 requirements schedule can be set up and to provide 

23 for the -- specifically provide for the solvency 

24 account option for agents to comply. 

25 MR. DURDEN: Okay. 
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1 MR. CARTER: Title office staff is in 

2 agreement with the comments that Mr. Rutledge made 

3 about adjusting the dates to be consistent with 

4 when we actually adopt the rule or its effective 

5 date. Some of the dates in the original proposal 

6 will need to be shifted forward and we're in 

7 agreement with that. 

8 The only disagreement we have on this 

9 agenda item involves the situation where a white 

10 knight investor comes to an agency and wants to 

11 invest in that agency; or when an agency is passed 

12 through inheritance to an heir following the death 

13 of an owner of a title agency. 

14 My understanding of TLTA's proposal 

15 is that in those situations, the agency would be 

16 grandfathered in and would have to be in compliance 

17 only with the schedules for the original agent. 

18 And title office staff's position is 

19 that we should cover as many people as possible 

20 with the schedules. And so our position would be 

21 that the white knight investor scenario and the 

22 inheritance scenario would be treated as a new 

23 agent on the date of that change of status for 

24 purposes of the schedules for compliance, but that 

25 ultimately will be a policy decision. 
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MR. DURDEN: Thank you, Rob. 

Any comments? 

1 

2 

3 

4 

MR. RUTLEDGE: I have a brief comment 

on that. I think that Mr. Carter is referring to 

5 Section II{C), which is on Page 6 of the proposal. 

6 And we very much urge the Commissioner to adopt 

7 this approach. 

8 Depending upon where the agent's 

9 principal office is located, they could be required 

10 to put up a substantial amount of money as a result 

11 of the schedule being in place, if they actually 

12 have to have a new license issued as a result of a 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

change of control. And that's the scenario of 

having a white knight come in to an agent that is 

distressed and is willing to put in capital to make 

the agency solvent and, basically, to save it from 

liquidation. We should not discourage that 

18 happening. 

19 It would put, potentially, a 

20 substantial burden on a new owner to both submit 

21 or contribute capital to the agency to get it 

22 solvent and then at the same time, in addition to 

23 the capital to get it solvent, to put up a solvency 

24 account that may be a substantial amount of money. 

25 Now, as a practical matter, the 
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1 

2 

3 

safety valve here with respect to that is the 

solvency account; they could elect to go with the 

solvency account. But some may not wish to go with 

4 the solvency account, and if we can encourage them 

5 to maybe be willing to save an agent that may be in 

6 distress, as opposed to the other alternative, 

7 which is usually to purchase the assets of that 

8 agency and the agency goes out of business. 

9 Now, this scenario, Mr. Durden, is 

10 essentially an artifact that is a result of an 

11 existing rule that is in the Administrative Rules 

12 in the Manual that says that if you have a change 

13 of control, you have to cancel your old license and 

14 

15 

issue a new license. And that's fine; we don't 

have an objection to that. But we may have an 

16 unintended consequence by that procedural 

17 requirement, where you have a change of control and 

18 you actually have a license that is cancelled. 

19 Where you have an agent, for example, 

20 that was originally chartered and was originally 

21 licensed in 1962 and it's the same entity, it's the 

22 same corporation, it's now taken over by -- or 

23 there is a change of control with new owners. The 

24 procedure would require that agent that's been In 

25 business for 40, 50 years, to cancel their license 
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1 and get a new license. And that new license would 

2 be dated, presumably, when it's issued. 

3 That may create a hardship 

4 inadvertently, and that's why this provision is in 

5 here, to give -- to make sure that we try not to 

6 discourage folks from coming in and injecting 

7 capital in agencies that may need additional 

8 capital. But they may also then, obviously, want 

9 to have control of that agency, if they're going to 

10 put capital up to do it. 

11 So that's why we put the provision 

12 in. 

13 MR. DURDEN: And it seems like maybe 

14 another side to that is, like it's talked about, a 

15 company needing capital infused, it seems like that 

16 would be an argument for building the solvency 

17 accounts for that same reason; I mean, if that's a 

18 concern about the financial wherewithal of the 

19 agency. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: I see your point 

there, but here is the problem. If you don't elect 

the solvency account, if you elect one of the other 

options -- putting up cash, for example -- you 

can't access that money, you can't use that asset; 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 it's restricted as a result of the statute. And so 
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if you want to have operating funds, you're going 

to have to infuse additional money so that you can 

operate and have sufficient liquidity to carry on 

operations. Again, I admit, however, that with the 

option now of the solvency account, then that may 

not be as big a deal as it was before 2604 passed. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. Is there anyone 

else that would like to comment on this proposal, 

2012-21? 

All right. Thank you. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: Agenda Item 2012-22 is 

the form by which an agent would certify to the 

Department its compliance with the minimum 

capitalization requirements of the statute. The 

15 form provides a series of check boxes to disclose 

16 the type of assets used, the options, that are 

17 available to maintain the capitalization 

18 requirements, including as now authorized by House 

19 Bill 2604, the solvency account. 

20 The last paragraph utilizes check 

21 boxes to provide a means for an agent to disclose 

22 whether or not the agent's solvency account, if 

23 that is the means which the agent uses for 

24 compliance, exceeds or does not exceed the amount 

25 that would have been required to be maintained by 
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1 the agent if the agent did not chose to maintain 

2 the solvency account but fell under the schedule 

3 that is set forth in Section 2651.012(g) of the 

4 Code. 

5 MR. CARTER: The title office has no 

6 objection to the substance of that proposal. We 

7 did find a typo in the italicized language above 

8 the signature lines; towards the end of the second 

9 line there, we'll change Tile to Title. 

10 MR. DURDEN: Sounds like a good 

11 change. 

12 Anyone else wanting to comment on 

13 Agenda Item 2012-22? 

All right. Mr. Rutledge. 14 

15 MR. RUTLEDGE: Thank you, Mr. Durden. 

16 The next agenda item, 2012-23, is really the --

17 it's the solvency account rule that was generated 

18 out of House Bill 2604. 

19 This rule provides the road map by 

20 which an agency may establish a solvency account. 

21 It tracks the language of Section 2651.012(1) of 

22 the Code; that's the solvency account language in 

23 the statutes. The solvency account is established 

24 by the execution of a promulgated Tripartite 

25 Agreement between the title agent, the financial 
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institution and the Commissioner. 

The rule sets forth the schedule 

dates for making deposits to the solvency account 

on a quarterly basis. Subsection F provides that 

access to the funds in the account may be allowed 

by order of the Commissioner and that signing the 

Tripartite Agreement constitutes an order to 

authorize the release of the funds, as set forth in 

that promulgated form. And the Tripartite 

10 Agreement is another agenda item that we'll talk 

11 about in a minute and get to that. 

12 And, finally, Subsection H implements 

13 the language of Section 2651.012(1) (m) of the Code 

14 that in a home office issue transaction, only the 

15 title agent that closes the transaction is required 

16 to make a deposit into a solvency account, and that 

17 the agent who provides title evidence or exam title 

18 evidence but does not close the transaction is not 

19 required to make a deposit for that transaction, 

20 assuming that both agents have elected to use the 

21 solvency account to meet their minimum 

22 capitalization requirements. 

23 

24 

25 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. 

MR. CARTER: No objections from title 

office staff on 22. 
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MR. DURDEN: Anyone else wishing to 

comment on Item 2012-23? 

MR. CARTER: One moment, please. No, 

we're fine with it. Thank you. 

MR. DURDEN: Sure. Anyone else on 

23? 

All right. Proceed. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: Thank you. Our next 

agenda item is Agenda Item 2012-24. That is the 

solvency account Tripartite Agreement form that I 

mentioned earlier. Mr. Burnie Burner is going to 

speak on behalf of TLTA with respect to that 

particular agenda item, and I would introduce him 

to speak with you. 

MR. DURDEN: All right. Mr. Burner. 

MR. BURNER: Good morning. I'll be 

very brief; I don't believe this agenda item is 

controversial. 

The concept for the Tripartite 

Agreement came from the previous existing practice 

at the Department, which is the joint control 

agreement that voids underwriters, and the 

Commissioner entered into with the financial 

institutions for the minimum required capital and 

surplus for a Texas lloyds company. The concept 
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1 being that the title agent and Commissioner and the 

2 financial institution would enter into an agreement 

3 to maintain the solvency account, in that the 

4 Tripartite Agreement spells out the specific rules 

5 upon which the title agent has access to these 

6 funds. 

7 I think this is a very important part 

8 of the solvency account rule because it allows all 

9 of us -- the Guaranty Association, in particular 

10 be able to rely on the fact that an independent 

11 third party is holding those funds and that they're 

12 only going to be released in certain circumstances. 

13 We have had unfortunate circumstances 

14 where title agents have abandoned their business or 

15 have gone out of business, for various reasons, and 

16 left no assets behind for the cleaning up of their 

17 files in this position of transactions that are 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

currently in process. So this is a very important 

part of the solvency protection, we believe, of the 

title agents. 

And I think there is probably some 

additional language that we need to think about. I 

think the Department has some additional language 

they would like to suggest with regard to tidying 

up the disposition of those assets. But on behalf 
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1 of the Guaranty Association, I would like to say we 

2 are very much in support of the solvency rule as a 

3 Tripartite Agreement as proposed by TLTA. 

4 Any questions? 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

office staff. 

MR. DURDEN: I don't think so. 

MR. BURNER: Okay. 

MR. CARTER: No objections from title 

MR. DURDEN: Mr. Brady. 

MR. BRADY: Good morning. My name is 

11 Kevin Brady with the Financial Regulation Division 

12 of the Department. 

13 I just wanted to echo some comments 

14 made by Mr. Burner, that we believe the language to 

15 be clarified, most specifically in the area 

16 regarding the release of excess funds. I wanted to 

17 make sure that there is not any inappropriate 

18 releases of funds, in that they're not truly 

19 excess. 

20 We believe there is an easy way to 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

clarify this language. In my mind, it's a 

non-substantive change because, as best I can tell, 

it would accomplish what all the parties are 

indicating that they're wanting to accomplish. We 

do believe that the agent should have the right to 
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draw down excess funds, and we want to just make 

sure that they truly are excess funds. We were 

thinking in terms of a ten-day waiting period, to 

allow the Department staff a reasonable amount of 

time to make sure that there was no basis for an 

objection. That was one clarification. 

39 

Another clarification, the Tripartite 

Agreement form, as literally drafted, would have 

the Commissioner of Insurance sign the form. There 

10 is a minor housekeeping concern with numerous forms 

11 being sent to the Commissioner, so we would suggest 

12 that that should also be clarified to allow a duly 

13 authorized representative of the Commissioner sign 

14 the Tripartite Agreements. 

15 That's it, unless there are any 

16 questions. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. DURDEN: No questions. 

MR. CARTER: Mr. Durden, if we do 

make the kind of changes that Mr. Brady is talking 

about, we would make a conforming change to the 

Solvency Account rule, which is in Agenda Item 23 

that was discussed previously, but it might just be 

a change of a word or two to make sure that it 

conforms with the changes that Mr. Brady is 

suggesting. 
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1 We might also ask that the signature 

2 lines call for a notary of the signatories. 

3 MR. RUTLEDGE: Mr. Durden, on behal f 

4 of TLTA, we will be happy to work with the staff on 

5 these issues; we've had a little bit of discussion 

6 about them. We would like to see the language but 

7 I think we can work that out. We have no objection 

8 at all to having the Commissioner's designate or an 

9 authorized person sign on behalf of the 

10 Commissioner, and I think what we'll -- I'm 

11 confident that we will be able to come to agreement 

12 on the language that would deal with the release of 

13 the funds that Mr. Brady has just talked about. We 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

just haven't actually seen any language, so we want 

to do that. 
~, ... -: 

MR. DURDEN: So staff will mark it 

up and provide it to TLTA, I'm assuming. 

MR. BRADY: Yes, sir, that was the 

intent. 

MR. DURDEN: Great. Thank you. 

21 Anyone else wishing to comment on 

22 Agenda Item 2012-24? 

23 All right. Mr. Rutledge. 

24 And I would ask for those of you who 

25 are commenting, if you would please just make sure 
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you get in the mike so we can make sure we get the 

comments properly recorded. It's better for her to 

hear when you speak directly into the mike. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: On the previous agenda 

item, Mr. Day has reminded me about the suggestion 

of having a notary sign the signatures. We would 

like to consider that and put our heads together 

and see kind of how we feel about that issue. I'm 

not sure that it will be one that we will have a 

lot of wrangling over; it's either you notarize or 

you don't notarize, but we would like to give some 

thought on that as well. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. That's fine. 

MR. CARTER: And our concern in the 

title office is to avoid any evidentiary questions 

later on, if someone denies having signed the 

agreement or claims that it wasn't their signature. 

MR. DURDEN: All right. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: Our next agenda item 

is Agenda Item 2012-25, the release of solvency 

account assets rule. And we would like to ask 

Mayor Massey to speak on behalf of this agenda item 

for TLTA. 

MAYOR MASSEY: Good morning, 

Mr. Durden; it's nice to see you again. Is this 
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1 thing on and you can hear; I've never been accused 

2 of not being heard but this could be the first 

3 time. 

4 I am the president of Brown County 

5 Abstract Company, Incorporate in Brownwood, Texas; 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

I appear on behalf of TLTA. I will shortly pass 

into my 40th year as a licensed escrow officer in 

the title insurance business in Texas. 

MR. DURDEN: Congratulations. 

MAYOR MASSEY: I'm just proud to have 

11 lived that long; it was touch and go for a while. 

12 Mr. Deputy Commissioner, you've 

13 already heard about the background that resulted In 

14 the legislation that allowed the establishment of 

15 the solvency accounts, and I won't bore you with 

16 more detail about that, except to say that I 

17 expected it to be popular because, at least it's 

18 been my experience, that other methods of assurance 

19 of minimum capitalization don't seem to have 

20 products readily available; or if available at all, 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

affordable for use: The insurance policy, the 

letter of credit, the bond, the certification, or 

convincing somebody you've got enough equity in 

your building to meet that kind of requirement. 

Now, this rule deals with how that 
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poor old wore-out agent gets his money out of that 

solvency account in the event he's going out of 

business. He's going to surrender his license and 

4 go to the home for elderly and infirm title 

5 insurance agents, and his business is being 

6 liquidated; or he's managed to find some financial 

7 angel that Mr. Rutledge referred to as a white 

8 knight who is going to come along and buy the 

9 business. 

10 This rule provides that if that agent 

11 meets certain requirements that he may, in the 

12 discretion of the Commissioner, get the money back. 

13 He has to do a final audit of his escrow account 

14 and his records pertaining to the escrow accounts, 

15 and to the unused forms in the agent's operation --

16 principally, would be underwriter's forms. He has 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

to surrender all pending and outstanding 

commitments to the appropriate underwriting company 

on which they're written. 

The agent has to send written notice 

to all the interested parties of any pending 

transaction as to what is happening, that he's 

closing down. He has to transfer all the escrow 

accounts and investment accounts not held for 

escrow purposes, not fully disbursed, to the 
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1 appropriate underwriter whose file it's going to 

2 be, except in the circumstance of a purchase by 

3 that financial angle. And I've already said there 

4 are a limited number of circumstances when the 

5 agent has the opportunity to pull that account 

6 down, which will appear as an asset on a financial 

7 statement but not one you can reach. 

8 Once a request to withdraw that money 

9 is sent to the Commissioner, the Commissioner has 

10 60 days to act. If she does not act during that 

11 60-day period, then it's the -- the request lS 

12 deemed to be denied. 

13 One thing I failed to mention, if 

14 bought by the financial angle who already has a 

15 solvency account that is large enough to cover the 

16 financial angle's existing operation and yours 

17 that's being bought out, then the one being bought 

18 out can get its solvency account back. 

19 And I think that sums that up, or at 

20 least muddied the water. 

21 

22 

1xlR. DURDEN : Thank you. 

I think I had one quest~on on 

23 Section B, I guess. The 60 days, is that by 

24 statute or is that by --

25 MAYOR MASSEY: I believe that's by 
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MR. DURDEN: All right. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: It is. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. Thanks. 

45 

2 

3 

4 

5 MR. CARTER: The title office has no 

6 objection. 

7 MAYOR MASSEY: Yes, sir. It's not 

8 later than -- if you will look at House Bill 2604, 

9 amended Section 2651.012(1) (j) 

10 

11 

MR. DURDEN: Right. I'm with you. 

MAYOR MASSEY: -- not later than the 

12 60th day after the Department receives an 

13 application. 

14 MR. DURDEN: Great. Thank you. 

15 Anyone else wishing to comment on 

16 Agenda Item 2012-25? 

17 Thank you, Mr. Massey. 

18 MAYOR MASSEY: If I may, Mr. Deputy 

19 Commissioner, I'll stay here; I'm on the next one, 

20 too. 

21 

22 

23 

MR. DURDEN: That's fine with me. 

All right. Item 26. 

MAYOR MASSEY: May it please the 

24 Deputy Commissioner. This rule simply provides the 

25 form that the agent must complete and is the 
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1 application to the Commissioner to allow the agent 

2 to pull down the solvency account. I believe it 

3 conforms with the letter of the spirit of the 

4 statute and of the proposed rule under Agenda 

5 Item 25. 

6 MR. CARTER: No objection from title 

7 office staff. 

8 MR. DURDEN: All right. 

9 Anyone else wishing to comment on 

10 Item 2012-26? 

11 

12 

13 

All right. Thank you again. 

MAYOR MASSEY: Thank you, sir. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: Deputy Commissioner 

14 Durden, the next agenda item that TLTA has filed is 

15 Agenda Item 2012-27, which is the agenda item that 

16 pertains to the rule for the use and issuance of 

17 the surety bond as contemplated by the statute. 

18 Acquiring a surety bond was one of 

19 the original means by which a title agent could opt 

20 to comply with the statutory requirements. This 

21 was set out in House Bill 4338; it can be found at 

22 Section 2651.012(a) (2) (e). Section 2651.012(j) 

23 of the Code, which was just referenced by 

24 Mayor Massey, recites that the statutory provisions 

25 for required capitalization become effective only 
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after the Commissioner adopts the form and 

procedures for the use of the surety bond. This 

3 was a provision that was in the original House 

4 Bill 4338. 

5 So, in essence, adoption of this 

6 agenda item and Agenda Item 2012-28 are essential 

7 to trigger the effect of the required 

8 capitalization requirements set forth in the 

9 statute. 

10 The proposed rule provides that the 

11 surety bond must be filed with the Department, 

47 

12 executed by an authorized surety company, and made 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

payable to the Commissioner. It specifies that if 

the Commissioner makes a claim under the bond, the 

Commissioner can do so on behalf of supervisors, 

conservators, receivers, liquidators, or the 

Guaranty Association. The proceeds of the bonds 

are not considered to be funds of the state. The 

19 bond may not be cancelled until 30 days after 

20 written notice of intent to cancel has been served 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

on the Department. And if a title agent utilizes a 

surety bond to comply with the minimum 

capitalization requirements, then the agent must 

notify the Department of that fact at the time of 

renewal of the agent's license. 
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1 We have filed a minor formatting 

2 amendment to the agenda item that was not a 

3 substantive amendment. 

4 

5 

MR. DURDEN: All right. 

MR. CARTER: Staff has no objection 

6 on Agenda Item 27. 

48 

7 MR. DURDEN: Anyone else wishing to 

8 provide comments on Agenda Item 2012-27? 

9 

10 

All right. Thank you. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: The next agenda item 

11 is Agenda Item 2012-28, and this, in fact, is the 

12 surety bond form itself. It is designed to conform 

13 to the requirements of the rule in 2012-27 that I 

14 just referred to. The amount of the bond and the 

15 effective date are set forth on the form. The 

16 30-day delay in cancellation is also set forth in 

17 the bond form, and the form recites that the 

18 aggregate liability of the surety company under the 

19 bond shall not exceed the penal sum of the bond. 

20 MR. CARTER: Mr. Durden, the title 

21 office staff does have a concern about the bond 

22 form in Agenda Item 28. It provides for 

23 cancellation by giving 30-days notice to the 

24 Department, with the surety remaining liable for 

25 any obligations under the bond committed prior to 
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1 the expiration of such 30-day period. 

2 We would prefer a 60-dayperiod, to 

3 give our staff and financial staff time to deal 

4 with the problem with the agent. This sort of 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

thing could be an early warning sign of potential 

financial problems. 

MR. DURDEN: Mr. Rutledge, any 

comments? 

MR. RUTLEDGE: Yes, I do. 

10 Mr. Durden, we asked for some feedback from the 

11 industry about this issue, but we don't have an 

12 objection if the staff would prefer to have a 

13 60-day provision as opposed to a 30-day provision 

14 in here. And interestingly enough, when we were 

49 

15 talking to the surety companies, they refer to this 

16 type of provision as a suicide provision, because 

17 they say well, if we issue notice of cancellation, 

18 we've got 30 days or 60 days, whatever the period 

19 of time is, for the Department to come in and file 

20 a claim on the bond because it's not dead; so we're 

21 potentially committing suicide by doing that. 

22 But the 30 days -- the presence of 

23 that provision in the bond has never been disputed 

24 and it's just a question of what that period of 

25 time should be. The downside we think, possibly, 
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1 to the 60-day period is that, from an underwriting 

2 standpoint, it may cause the bond to be more 

3 expensive to purchase if they finally become 

4 available. But we will not object to that, if 

5 that's what the staff prefers. 

6 MR. DURDEN: All right. Great. 

7 Any particular reason why you say it 

8 might be more expensive or you think it might be 

9 more expensive? 

10 MR. RUTLEDGE: Their exposure -- the 

11 surety company's exposure is twice as long at 

12 60 days as opposed to 30 days. And so in terms of 

13 underwriting, they may factor that into the 

14 underwriting cost. 

15 MR. DURDEN: All right. 

16 Anyone else wishing to provide 

17 comments on Agenda Item 2012-28? 

All right. Thank you. 

Item 2012-29. 

18 

19 

20 MR. RUTLEDGE: Thank you, Mr. Durden. 

21 The next five agenda items, 2012-29 through 

22 1220-33, will be presented on behalf of TLTA by 

23 Mr. Mike Savas, and I would like to introduce him 

24 to come to the podium and address you on those 

25 issues. 
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IxlR. DURDEN : Good morning, 

Mr. Savas. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

IxlR. SAVAS: Good morning, Mr. Deputy 

Commissioner Durden; Mike Savas. As Mr. Rutledge 

says, I'm here on behalf of the Texas Land Title 

Association to speak in support of these agenda 

items, 2012-29 through 2012-33. The five items 

relate to two disclosures, essentially, arising 

from H.B. 4338 passed, as Mr. Rutledge mentions, in 

10 the wake of the recent economic downturn, in order 

11 to face concerns of identifying solvency of Texas 

12 agents. 

13 The bill amended Section 2651.001 of 

14 the Texas Insurance Code to provide for two things: 

15 One, financial matter disclosure; and two, 

16 quarterly tax reports disclosure. 

17 The first one, the financial matter 

18 disclosure, relates to the first three agenda 

19 

20 

items. And I'll direct your attention to the first 

one, 2012-29. This rule sets forth a mechanism by 

21 which a title insurance company may provide 

22 information to the Department about a financial 

23 matter that would reasonably call into question the 

24 solvency of a title agent that the title insurance 

25 company appointed. That's language that tracks 
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1 from the statute and is embedded into the rule. 

2 The rule also sets forth two forms 

3 relating to, one, who may submit the information, 

4 the form of the disclosure report; and then the 

5 timing of the form, when the form shall be filed, 

6 which is annually every January. Of course, I 

7 suppose this year 30 days from the effective date 

8 of the rule. 

9 And that is, essentially, 2012-29; 

10 I'll submit to any questions. 

11 MR. CARTER: The title office staff 

12 has no objections to the substance. We may have 

13 some minor formatting changes to make but that's 

14 all. 

15 MR. SAVAS: Okay. 

16 MR. DURDEN: Is the purpose of this 

17 really to outline the forms that the agent will use 

18 or that will be used to make the report? 

19 MR. SAVAS: Yes, sir. It's done in 

20 order, first off, to comply with the statute that 

21 provides that mechanisms, and also to set forth, 

22 again, in the statute two things: A form where 

23 each underwriter has a specific person and then 

24 designees, alternate designees, that are the only 

25 ones entitled to provide that information to the 
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1 Department. And then secondarily, it outlines 

2 within the rule, the form -- or refers to the form, 

3 the actual financial disclosure form that the 

4 company shall use. 

5 MR. DURDEN: Okay. Thank you. 

6 Anyone else wishing to comment on 

7 Agenda Item 2012-29? 

8 

9 

All right. Go to the next one. 

MR. SAVAS: Okay. Item 2012-30 is 

10 the Annual Report of the Title Company's Officers 

11 Authorized to Provide Information on Agent 

12 Financial Matters. And, again, as I mentioned, it 

13 allows one person to make the annual report -- it 

14 is an annual report -- and it provides three 

15 alternative officers. And the thought being that 

16 there may be an absence and need for an alternative 

17 one or two, and in this matter three, people that 

18 might be able to, in the absence of the primary 

19 designee, to provide that information to the 

20 Department. 

21 And, again, this one, as contemplated 

22 under the rule, this form is the one that needs to 

23 be filed annually. 

24 Are there any questions on that item? 

25 MR. CARTER: The title office has no 
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1 objections. 

2 MR. DURDEN: Anyone else wishing to 

3 provide comments on Agenda Item 2012-30? 

4 

5 

All right. Let's go to 31. 

MR. SAVAS: Item 2012-31, the 

6 Financial Matter Disclosure Report. It includes 

7 language that is tracked from the statute with 

54 

8 regard to the authorization under 2651.001, and it 

9 provides, one, for a check the box based on the 

10 category of the financial matter. And then more 

11 importantly also, an area which allows the 

12 underwriter to provide a brief synopsis of the 

13 financial matter and further qualify that matter. 

14 MR. CARTER: The title office has no 

15 objections. We may need to adjust the 

16 capitalization, not financial capitalization but 

17 grammatical capitalization, on a word or two just 

18 to make it internally consistent. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

MR. DURDEN: All right. 

Anyone else, comments on 2012-31? 

All right. Let's proceed. 

MR. SAVAS: Agenda Item 2012-32 

23 actually, the next two relate to the second prong 

24 of these matters that are contemplated by the 

25 amendment of 2651.001. This is the Quarterly Tax 
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1 Reporting Disclosure. The first item, 2012-32, is 

2 the actual rule contemplated, the Title Agent's 

3 Quarterly Withholding Tax Report rule. Again, this 

4 tracks the statute, to the extent that it allows a 

5 rule to show filing of agent's quarterly 

6 withholding tax report, show evidence of payment of 

7 taxes, and then allows for agent without employees 

8 to so certify and to state that there has not been 

9 a material change. 

10 Are there any questions on this item? 

11 MR. CARTER: The title office has no 

12 objections; although, we might change some of the 

13 numbering and lettering for internal consistency, 

14 but we have no objection to the substance of the 

15 proposal. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

MR. DURDEN: All right. Thank you. 

Anyone else with cormnents on Agenda 

Item 2012-32? 

All right. Proceed. 

MR. SAVAS: Lastly, Item 2012-33 is 

21 the Title Agent's Quarterly Withholding Tax Report 

22 form; this is the actual form as contemplated by 

23 the rule. It provides, again, for the form for 

24 each quarterly tax report certification, and the 

25 agent may either certify that there is a copy of 

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE 
333 GUADALUPE, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78714-9104 



56 

1 the quarterly report attached or it had no 

2 employees, did not file and there has not been a 

3 material change in the financial condition of the 

4 agency. 

5 And if there are any questions on 

6 that agenda item as well, I'll take them. 

7 MR. CARTER: The title office has no 

8 objections. 

9 MR. DURDEN: All right. 

10 Anyone else wishing to provide 

11 comments on 2012-337 

12 

13 

14 

All right. Thank you, Mr. Savas. 

We're back to you, Mr. Rutledge. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: Thank you, Mr. Durden. 

15 The next item on the agenda was 2012-34; that has 

16 been withdrawn. TDI staff has submitted their 

17 Agenda Item 2012-88, and our issues and concerns in 

18 our agenda item have been addressed in 2012-88. 

19 And we will support that Agenda Item 88, after 

20 having withdrawn the 34. 

21 

22 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. Thank you. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: The next agenda item 

23 is 2012-35, the Title Agent Examination Report 

24 rule; and, again, we would like to calIon 

25 Mr. Burner to present that to you. 
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2 

MR. DURDEN: Mr. Burner. 

MR. BURNER: Thank you, Mr. Durden. 

3 Agenda Item 35 is, I believe, an important 

4 augmentation of the title agent examination 

5 process, which is funded by the Title Guaranty 

6 Association as part of our guaranteed fee 

7 obligation. 

8 The prior law did not necessarily 

9 make it clear that a title agent had due process 

57 

10 with regard to title agent examination reports and 

11 the opportunity to provide input or disagree with a 

12 title examination as it was finally determined. So 

13 this statutory provision was included in 4338, in 

14 2009, in order to implement an appeal process which 

15 allows the agent to have due process, both in terms 

16 of receiving a copy of the exam report and the 

17 evidence upon which the report relies prior to any 

18 meeting with the Commissioner or the staff 

19 regarding the exam report, and also provides access 

20 to the formalized appeal process that we're 

21 familiar with for financial exams for insurance 

22 

23 

24 

25 

companies. That's the purpose of the rule. 

I'll be happy to answer any 

questions. 

MR. DURDEN: I have no questions. 
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1 Thank you. 

2 MR. CARTER: Deputy Commissioner 

3 Durden, the only suggestion that we would have in 

4 the title office on this is in Subsection A(3), 

5 where it references an appeal under Section 7.83. 

6 After consulting with financial 

7 counsel and in light of potential reorganizations 

8 here at TDI, it might be best to say, instead of 

9 under 7.83, to say under a procedure substantially 

10 similar to or similar to Section 7.83. 

11 My understanding is that the rule 

12 under 7.83 has not yet been changed in any way to 

13 specifically include title, but we have no 

14 objection to that basic process being used. 

15 MR. DURDEN: And counsel is telling 

16 me that tracks closely with the statute also. 

17 

18 

19 

MR. CARTER: Yes, that's correct; 

"similar to" would track the statutory language. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: Mr. Durden, we don't 

20 have any objection to that; that is the statutory 

21 language and it will provide us with some 

22 flexibility, if we need to, to address the 7.83 

23 type proceeding to title insurance. 

24 

25 

MR. DURDEN: Great. Thank you. 

Anyone else that would like to 
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1 provide comments on 2012-35? 

Thank you. We'll move to 36. 2 

3 MR. RUTLEDGE: Thank you, Mr. Durden. 

4 Agenda Item 2012-36 amends both Procedural Rule P-1 

5 and Procedural Rule P-12 to incorporate the 

6 amendment in Section 2501.004(b) (2) of the Code, 

7 requiring that a qualified abstract plant must 

8 cover a period beginning not later than January 1, 

9 1979. Until that statutory change was made, the 

10 length of period of time in which you had to have a 

11 title plant was a rolling 25-year period. This 

12 will fix the minimum date at January 1, 1979, and 

13 for each year thereafter, you would add to the 

14 amount of time that would need to be covered by the 

15 plant. The item also updates the statutory 

16 references in the procedural rules as well. 

17 MR. CARTER: No objection from title 

18 office staff. 

19 MR. DURDEN: All right. 

20 Anyone else that would like to 

21 provide comments on Agenda Item 2012-36? 

22 All right. Then we'll move to 37. 

23 Mr. Rutledge. 

24 MR. RUTLEDGE: Thank you, Mr. Durden. 

25 Agenda Item 2012-37 makes a conforming amendment to 
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1 Form T-57, the Agreement to Furnish Title Evidence, 

2 and reflects the minimum beginning coverage of a 

3 qualified abstract plant as of January I, 1979. So 

4 these two agenda items accomplish the same thing. 

5 MR. CARTER: No objection from title 

6 office staff. 

7 MR. DURDEN: All right. 

8 Anyone else wishing to comment on 

9 2012-37? 

10 All right. Next item. 

11 MR. RUTLEDGE: Now, I suppose, we 

12 pivot from House Bill 2604 to House Bill 2408. 

13 

14 

MR. DURDEN: Right. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: The next agenda item 

15 is Agenda Item 2012-38; it amends Procedural 

16 Rule P-5.1. The current rule in effect requires 

17 that if an exception or exclusion regarding 

18 coverage of mineral rights is included in a title 

19 policy, the title company must, mandatory, must 

20 issue one or more of the minerals endorsements, 

21 the T-19.2 or the T-19.3, depending upon the 

22 circumstances, as provided in Procedural 

23 Rule P-50.1. 

24 However, House Bill 2408, passed last 

25 year, adopted Section 2703.0515 of the Code, which 

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE 
333 GUADALUPE, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78714-9104 



61 

1 makes issuance of these endorsements no longer 

2 mandatory in connection with a title insurance 

3 policy which contains a general exception or 

4 exclusion for minerals coverage; and, therefore, 

5 the rule is being changed to conform to the 

6 statutory change. 

7 MR. CARTER: The title office staff 

8 has no objections; the proposal is consistent with 

9 the recent statutory changes. 

10 MR. DURDEN: Anyone else wishing to 

11 provide comments on 2012-38? 

12 All right. 

13 MR. RUTLEDGE: The next agenda item 

14 is similar, it's Agenda Item 2012-39. It makes 

15 conforming changes to Procedural Rule P-50.1, which 

16 is the procedural rule that deals with the mineral 

17 endorsements that I just referenced. It makes 

18 conforming amendments to that rule, as provided by 

19 Section 2703.0515 of the Code. And the two agenda 

20 items, 38 and 39, basically, accomplish the same 

21 thing by conforming both rules to the statutory 

22 changes. 

23 MR. CARTER: No objection from title 

24 office staff. 

25 MR. DURDEN: Anyone else wishing to 
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1 provide comments on 2012-39? 

2 All right. We'll proceed to the next 

3 item. 

4 MR. RUTLEDGE: The next item would 

5 be Agenda Item 2012-41, which deals with Rate 

6 Rule R-36, which had provided for a credit for 

7 on a policy where there was a general exception for 

8 minerals or an exclusion from minerals. 

9 House Bill 2408 adopted 

10 Section 2703.056 of the Code; Subsection (b) of 

11 that section of the statute prohibits the credit 

12 described in Rate Rule R-36. That provision became 

13 effective on January 1, 2012 by virtue of 

14 Section 17 of House Bill 2408. This agenda item, 

15 in effect, repeals the rate rule effective on that 

16 date, in conformity with the statute. 

17 MR. CARTER: No objection from title 

18 office staff. 

19 MR. DURDEN: Anyone else wishing to 

20 provide comments on 2012-41? 

21 All right. We'll move to the next 

22 item. 

23 MR. RUTLEDGE: The next agenda item 

24 is Agenda Item 2012-42. This agenda item 

25 implements the section of the statutes that were 
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1 enacted by House Bill 2408, and that section of the 

2 statutes, in particular, is Section 2703.0515, 

3 Subsection (c). 

4 This provision provides that no 

5 premium may be charged for a minerals endorsement, 

6 the T-19.2 or the T-19.3, if that endorsement is 

7 attached to a loan policy. That's in conformity 

8 with the dictates of the statute. The agenda item 

9 maintains the current premium for endorsements that 

10 are attached to Owner's Policies. 

11 MR. CARTER: No objection from title 

12 office staff. 

13 MR. DURDEN: Anyone wishing to 

14 provide comments on 2012-42? 

15 

16 

All right. Moving on, next item. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: Our last agenda item 

17 that was originally filed was Agenda Item 2012-43. 

18 But in consultation with TDI staff, we've 

19 determined to withdraw that agenda item. 

20 MR. DURDEN: Thank you, 

21 Mr. Rutledge, TLTA representatives. 

22 MR. RUTLEDGE: Thank you, Mr. Durden; 

23 appreciate it. 

24 MR. DURDEN: All right. I think that 

25 puts us up to 2012-45. I recognize Mr. Burnie 
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Burner for that agenda item. 

MR. BURNER: Thank you, Mr. Durden. 

My Agenda Items 44, 45 and 46 were filed by the 

Texas Title Insurance Guaranty Association. As I 

indicated earlier, we have filed a letter 

withdrawing Agenda Item 44, which were our 

suggested -- which was our suggested amendments to 

Administrative Rule L-1, regarding licensing. In 

9 an effort to try to assist the staff by 

10 streamlining the licensing process and deleting 

11 some documentation requirements, that is now 

12 represented by TDI's Agenda Item No. 85. 

13 And I would like to thank Mr. Carter 

14 and his staff for diligent work on trying to reach 

15 an agreement with us with regard to that agenda 

16 item and the licensing process, and also with Tom 

17 Rutledge and Aaron Day and the folks at Texas Land 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Title Association. It was a very collegial effort 

to try to streamline that process, and I think we 

came up with a good product in Agenda Item No. 85. 

So we're happy to withdraw No. 44. 

Nos. 45 and 46 deal with the Guaranty 

Fee Remittance Form which title agents have to 

complete and file with the Guaranty Association, 

along with their remittances on every quarter. 
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1 And those two agenda items were 

2 offered by the Guaranty Association because the 

3 remittance form is subject to change, as we change 

4 addresses, telephone numbers, and also as the 

5 guaranty fee changes. And it was included in the 

6 Title Manual and has not been amended for a number 

7 of years because we have not had one of these rule 

8 hearings, nor the opportunity to amend it. 

9 So we have had to change the form on 

10 behalf of the Guaranty Association and to 

11 communicate with the agents to try to make sure 

12 that the guaranty fee remittance process goes 

13 smoothly. 

14 Agenda Item No. 46 was our attempt to 

15 take the remittance form out of the Manual, so that 

16 it would just be in the province of the Guaranty 

17 Fund to make those changes. Both the Department 

18 and TLTA objected to that, so we're happy to 

19 withdraw Agenda Item 46 in favor of Agenda Item 45, 

20 which simply provides flexibility for the Guaranty 

21 Association to change those portions of the form 

22 which might be subject to change in the ordinary 

23 course of business, like our telephone number, our 

24 

25 

address, and the amount of the guaranty fee. And 

we would urge your support. 
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1 I'll be happy to answer any 

2 questions. 

3 MR. CARTER: No objections from title 

4 office staff. 

5 MR. RUTLEDGE: TLTA supports the 

6 agenda item. 

7 MR. DURDEN: Anyone else wishing to 

8 provide comments on Agenda Item 2012-45? 

9 All right. We'll move to Agenda 

10 Item 2012-47. I recognize Ms. Linda Burgess. 

11 MS. BURGESS: Hello. I'm here on 

12 behalf of Alamo Title Company, and Alamo Title is 

13 the sponsor of Agenda Item 2012-47. 

14 Let me briefly give you some 

15 background. In 2009, the Texas legislature 

16 adopted, as you know, Section 2501.008 of the Texas 

17 Insurance Code. And that statute permits an 

18 insurance company to charge, separate from the 

19 title insurance premium, actual costs or a 

20 reasonable estimate of costs for third party 

21 charges. 

22 In response, TDI amended specific 

23 areas in Procedure No. 5 of the Manual. And the 

24 language at issue that I'm talking about states, 

25 "The actual charge for an absentee notary sign-up 

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE 
333 GUADALUPE, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78714-9104 



67 

1 may be passed through, if the notary is a third 

2 party, not affiliated with the licensee," that's 

3 the background. 

4 In response, my client, Alamo Title, 

5 brought a lawsuit, in March of 2010, challenging 

6 the rule modification and the litigation is 

7 currently pending in Travis County. The allegation 

8 is that Procedure No.5, as it was amended, is 

9 invalid because it imposes additional burdens, 

10 conditions or restrictions on insurance title 

11 agents, and other insurers, in excess of the 

12 statute. Plus, we have an allegation that there 

13 wasn't a reasonable justification for the rule 

14 change. 

15 TDI has answered the lawsuit and we 

16 have agreed, TDI and Alamo Title, that with the 

17 adoption of the proposed amendment to special --

18 specific areas in Procedure No.5, that with the 

19 adoption of this rule change, the case will be 

20 settled. 

21 What is important about the amendment 

22 that Alamo Title is presenting is that the 

23 amendment removes the restriction for the pass 

24 through of charges for affiliated third party 

25 notaries, but consistent with RESPA, adds a 
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2 affiliated relationship. 

3 It's my understanding that TLTA 

4 supports this and TDI staff does as well. 

5 

6 

7 staff. 

8 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

MR. CARTER: No objections from TDI 

MR. RUTLEDGE: That's correct, TLTA 

9 does support the agenda item. 

MR. DURDEN: All right. 

MS. BURGESS: Thank you. 

Thank you. 

68 

10 

11 

12 MR. DURDEN: Thank you, Ms. Burgess. 

13 Anyone else wishing to provide 

14 comments on 2012-47? 

15 All right. We'll go to Agenda 

16 Item 2012-48, and I'll recognize Mr. Merritt 

17 Hopson. 

18 MR. HOPSON: Good morning again, 

19 Deputy Commissioner. Again, I'm Merritt Hopson 

20 with the Fidelity National Title Group. 

21 Agenda Item 2012-48 focuses on one 

22 key issue at least the changes do -- and that is 

23 Article 8 of Section 1-d and 1-d-1 of the Texas 

24 Constitution. The rule itself doesn't say that, 

25 but those provisions in the Texas Constitution deal 
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1 with rollback taxes. That is an instance where a 

2 land owner has applied for and received a special 

3 ag appraisal method on their property, and it's 

4 commonly called rollback tax when that ag appraisal 

5 is triggered and rolled back and taxes are due. 

6 In 2012-48, we want to change 

7 Paragraph B, which deals specifically with those 

8 rollback taxes. 

9 In the past, prior to this current 

10 adoption in 2008 of this rule, companies could take 

11 an indemnity or hold money or otherwise insure 

12 against rollback taxes for the lender. I'll give 

13 you a prime example of that. A country gentleman 

14 buys a home in the country and qualifies for the 

15 1-d-l tax exemption or tax appraisal method. I 

16 always joke that his kid is in FFA and got a fat 

17 calf out there; but nonetheless, he's entitled to 

18 the exemption. 

19 At the closing when he purchases this 

20 property, the title company will take an indemnity 

21 from him, saying if there is ever rollback taxes 

22 due on this property, under the lender'S policy, 

23 he, as owner, will pay those taxes. 

24 With the prior adoption of this rule 

25 that practice was stopped; we couldn't do that any 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

longer. We've had a number of parties -- let's 

take this same country gentleman, and he comes 

along to refinance his transaction, his loan on his 

home, and that's pretty common these days. Under 

the new rule, we can't take his indemnity. He has 

to trigger those rollbacks and have them paid to 

show that there is none due. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

So this proposal talks about the 

insured transaction, the transaction that would 

trigger those taxes. And if the company is 

satisfied that the insured transaction will not 

trigger the rollback, then we can ensure to the 

lender to give them that coverage. If we have 

14 satisfactory evidence from the taxing authorities 

15 that they won't assess a rollback, and some taxing 

16 authorities will give a letter to that effect, that 

17 they won't assess a rollback. 

18 If the rollbacks have been assessed 

19 and they're collected at closing and the company 

20 paid in the normal course of business, then, yes, 

21 we could insure over them. 

22 Now, if the rollbacks are due in the 

23 future, and it's clear that the current transaction 

24 is going to trigger them, then the rule still does 

25 not permit giving the lender that insured coverage. 
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1 So it opens it up a little bit but it protects both 

2 the insured or the owner of the property -- the 

3 lender and the title company. 

4 Any questions? 

5 MR. DURDEN: I think I do have a 

6 couple questions on this one; one I think is minor. 

7 It seems like in some of the other forms, the term 

8 Mortgagee has been changed to Loan. Is that a 

9 similar change that should be brought in this 

10 document also? Under Rollback Taxes, there is a 

11 reference to the Mortgage Policy and Mortgage Title 

12 Policy Binder on Interim Construction Loan. And In 

13 some of the other agenda items, it looked like 

14 Mortgagee was changed to Loan Policy. 

15 MR. HOPSON: I can sure make those 

16 changes. 

17 MR. DURDEN: If it's appropriate. 

18 And then I would -- I'm just asking, you sort of 

19 addressed it, but some of the terminology, in terms 

20 of sufficient indemnity and responsible party seems 

21 kind of wide open. Is there a way to narrow it, or 

22 are those defined terms? 

23 MR. HOPSON: No, they're not defined 

24 terms. It's kind of a broad catchall. Let's say 

25 the property is in a trust. The party that would 
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1 execute the indemnity might not be the holder of 

2 the title, the trustee of the trust, but might be 

3 the beneficiary under the trust. They would be 

4 ultimately the responsible party. Typically, it 

5 would be the owner or someone directly related to 

6 the owner that would be this responsible party. 

7 And sufficient indemnity, of course, is going to 

8 be -- pay the taxes, if for some reason they're 

9 triggered. Now, under 1-d-l, the taxes are 

10 triggered, under the Constitution, only upon a 

11 change of use of the property. 

12 So if we have the country gentleman 

13 that buys a spread in the country and lives out 

14 there, it's unlikely that he would give up that tax 

15 benefit and change the use of that property. Of 

16 course, if he does, we have his indemnity which 

17 said he wouldn't, which obligates him to pay the 

18 rollback tax that he may incur. 

19 MR. DURDEN: Okay. So is it possible 

20 that different companies might decide what is 

21 sufficient, in terms of the indemnification, what 

22 it might -- might it vary from company to company? 

23 MR. HOPSON: It's quite likely it 

24 could, although -- well, an indemnity is an 

25 indemnitYi I mean, it says you don't owe the money 
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now but if you do certain things in the future, 

then you will owe to pay the taxes. And the form 
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and the style would vary, I'm sure, from company to 

company and maybe from time to time within the same 

company, but I don't know that the purpose would 

vary_ 

MR. DURDEN: All right. I got you. 

Thanks. 

Questions? 

MR. CARTER: Mr. Durden, in addition 

to the -- this lS Rob Carter with the title office. 

In addition to the definitional issues that you've 

raised, we have some concerns about this agenda 

item, in general, because it could have the effect 

of reducing coverage that's already available in 

the general policy forms. And we have a recent 

Commissioner's order in which a title agent getting 

an indemnity agreement from an insured or a 

borrower, as to matters covered in the general 

policy, was found to be a violation. 

So we do have concerns about this 

particular agenda item and can't say that we agree 

with this one. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. Anyone else 

wishing to provide comments on Agenda Item 2012-48? 
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MR. DAY: Aaron Day with Texas Land 

Title Association. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

I just wanted to make a few comments 

for the Commissioner's consideration. This 

issue -- we're very much in support of this agenda 

item, especially, in the home equity context. This 

7 has created quite a problem where we see this in 

8 the shoulder areas of an urban area, but out in the 

9 country, basically, it has to do with the 

10 insurability of the loan and the ability for the 

11 deal to close even. 

12 So this is creating quite a technical 

13 snafu for folks that on the ground everybody 

14 understands what is happening, but when you get 

15 into the secondary market, there are assurances 

16 that are not able to be made. So it's really 

17 creating a technical problem and causing great 

18 concern for individuals out there that can't get 

19 their deals done without great hardship. 

20 So we would just plead that the 

21 Commissioner take those scenarios under advisement 

22 in considering this agenda item. 

23 

24 

25 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you, Mr. Day. 

Anyone else wishing to provide 

comments on 2012-48? 
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Thank you. And, Mr. Hopson, you have 

the next item also? 

MR. HOPSON: On Agenda Item 2012-49? 

MR. DURDEN: On 49, yes, sir. 

MR. HOPSON: Pardon? 

MR. DURDEN: Yes. 

MR. HOPSON: This is a rate rule; 

it's, ln my opinion, somewhat of a clean-up rule. 

In the 2008 hearing, under Agenda 

Items 2008-38 and 39, the procedural rule was 

amended and a form was adopted. The form is the 

Contiguity Endorsement. Heretofore, in the 25 -

the T-25 Form, the Contiguity Endorsement, when a 

parcel or several parcels of land were put together 

in one transaction, the owner or the lender wanted 

to be certain that each tract was contiguous to the 

other tract; that there wasn't some little strip 

that was missing between two of those tracts and so 

they would order the T-25 Endorsement. 

That endorsement required describing 

each contiguous line. So if you had five tracts of 

irregular shape, you might have fifteen lines that 

you had to describe: The most easterly southeast 

line of Tract A is contiguous to the most northerly 

northwest line of Tract C, and on and on and on. 
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1 So what 25.1 did was simply state 

2 they're all, essentially, contiguous, without 

3 having to go into the minutia of describing the 

4 most southerly southeast line of Tract 1, 

5 et cetera, et cetera. 

6 The rate rule that was a companion 

7 each of these forms, typically, has three parts: 

8 The form, the rule and the rate -- was pushed over 

9 for rate reasons, even though the two forms have 

10 identical liability and the same coverage, it was 

11 pushed over into the rate hearing and then the rate 

12 hearing was settled and the proposed rate rule was 

13 never adopted. 

14 So now we have a rule and we have a 

15 

16 

form and we have no rate for it. The rate was 

proposed to be identical to what the T-25 rate was, 

17 which was $100 per policy. Regardless of the 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

number of tracts that were contiguous, the T-25.1 

had the same rate. And what I would like to see, 

since it was filed as a package, that this rate 

rule be adopted such that this form can now be 

issued. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. 

MR. CARTER: Mr. Durden, after 

consultation with Mr. Hopson, the title office 
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1 agrees that this is, basically, a clean-up matter 

2 and we have no objection to it. 

3 MR. DURDEN: Is there anyone else 

4 that would like to provide comments on Item 

5 2012-49? 

6 MR. RUTLEDGE: Mr. Durden, Torn 

7 Rutledge with TLTA. We support the agenda item. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

Anyone else? 

MR. HOPSON: Thank you very much. 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you, Mr. Hopson; 

12 good to see you. 

13 Checking with the court reporter; 

14 she's fine, so we're rocking along. 
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15 At this time we will move into Agenda 

16 Item 2012-50. And I think I should recognize 

17 Catherine Fryer, since she's at the mike. 

18 MS. FRYER: Mr. Durden, Ms. Waitt, 

19 I'm Catherine Fryer, representing Stewart Title 

20 Guaranty. 

21 Just to let you know initially that 

22 Stewart Title has withdrawn Agenda Items 2012-60 

23 and 2012-71, which were rate rule proposals which 

24 we have agreed to defer for consideration to the 

25 rate hearing. We've also 'withdrawn Agenda 
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1 Items 2012-61 and 2012-68, which were proposed 

2 revisions to Procedural Rule P-9. And we have 

3 filed an amendment to the TDI title office staff's 

4 2012-72, which was also a P-9 revision to 

5 incorporate our proposed changes into their agenda 

6 item. 

7 

8 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. Thank you. 

MS. FRYER: We will begin with 

9 Mr. John Rothermel addressing Agenda Items 2012-50 

10 through 2012-52. Thank you. 

11 

12 

13 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you, Ms. Fryer. 

Mr. Rothermel. Good morning. 

MR. ROTHERMEL: Good morning . John 

14 Rothermel with Stewart Title Guaranty Company. 

15 Agenda Item 2012-50, filed by us, 

16 amends P-57, which is the procedural rule dealing 

17 with Additional Insured Endorsement, to add the 

18 ability to provide a coverage for a limited 

19 liability company. And it provides it with check 

20 boxes so that we only deal with the issue that 

21 we're dealing with in making this kind of change. 

22 We've provided a fairly extensive 

23 Justification. This is essentially called a 

24 fairway endorsement. It's designed to let a 

25 limited liability company know that if there are 
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new partners coming in that they are covered. 

The ALTA policy form was changed to 

allow -- to add a word Reorganization, which should 

provide the real coverage, but some buying-in 

lenders and owners want to know that they have 

specific coverage. So this is more of a comfort 

endorsement than it is substantive, but it does 

deal with the issue of whether or not we're arguing 

about what a reorganization actually is. 

And if you have any questions, I'll 

be happy to -- but in the interest of time and 

we're moving so fast, I don't want to read the 

whole Justification to you. 

MR. DURDEN: We appreciate that. 

MR. ROTHERMEL: I thought you would. 

MR. CARTER: Title office has no 

objections to 50. 

MR. DURDEN: Is this mirrored off of 

an ALTA form or --

MR. ROTHERMEL: Yes. 

MR. DURDEN: Great. 

Anyone wishing to provide comments on 

Agenda Item 2012-50? 

MS. FRYER: Excuse me, Mr. Durden. I 

think the answer to your question is this is not 
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1 off an ALTA 

2 MR. ROTHERMEL: I'm sorry, it's 

3 modeled off of our national forms, instead of 

4 yes, I'm sorry; thank you, Cathy. 

5 

6 

7 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

All right. Agenda Item 51. 

MR. ROTHERMEL: Item 51 is the 

8 optional inclusion of the language for limited 

9 liability companies, which would be added to the 

10 Form T-26. 
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11 MR. CARTER: The title office has no 

12 objection on this one; although, it looks like 

13 there may be two paragraphs that are duplicative 

14 and so we'll wind up trying to not do that. 

15 MR. ROTHERMEL: Yeah, we only want 

16 we don't like duplicitous. 

17 MR. DURDEN: Anyone else wishing to 

18 comment on 2012-51? 

19 MR. RUTLEDGE: Mr. Durden, I 

20 neglected to mention earlier on 2012-50 and on this 

21 2012-51, TLTA supports both of those agenda items. 

22 

23 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

All right. You're on 52, 

24 Mr. Rothermel. 

25 MR. ROTHERMEL: Thank you. Item 52 
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1 addresses a disparity between a form and a rule. 

2 Procedural Rule P-58 provides currently for two 

3 types of directly issued policies; the TOO Form has 

4 three. And so this simply adds the third category 

5 to the procedural rule for consistency. 

6 MR. CARTER: The title office has no 

7 objections, but we will probably need to amend the 

8 Form 12 to make conforming changes to this. So if 

9 there are no objections to that, we're okay with 

10 this. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

MR. ROTHERMEL: We just would like to 

be consistent. 

MR. DURDEN: But no objections to 

amending the Form 12? 

MR. ROTHERMEL: No. 

MR. DURDEN: Great. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: Mr. Durden, TLTA also 

18 supports this agenda item as well. 

19 MR. DURDEN: All right. 

20 Anyone else wishing to provide 

21 comments on Agenda Item 2012-52? 

22 Thank you, Mr. Rothermel. 

23 MS. FRYER: Mr. Durden, Jim Gosdin 

24 will address Stewart Title Agenda Items 2012-53 

25 through 2012-58. 
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13 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. We'll 

recognize Mr. Gosdin. Good morning. 

MR. GOSDIN: Good morning. Jim 

Gosdin with Stewart Title Guaranty Company. 

Mr. Durden, Ms. Waitt, members of the staff. 
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The first agenda item, which is a 

matter I will discuss, is 2012-53. And this is a 

revision of the Residential Owner's Policy of Title 

Insurance. I think the substance of this form is 

that it makes changes that are beneficial to the 

consumer. It modernizes the T-1R Form, as it's 

called, to be consistent with the T-l, the other 

Owner's Policy. And in providing the covered risk, 

14 they are parallel to those in the T-l Owner's 

15 Policy. 

16 It also conforms to Section 

17 2703.101(g) of the Insurance Code, and Section 2.b 

18 of the Conditions, to expand the Continuation of 

19 Coverage provisions, which are beneficial to the 

20 consumer as well. Section 6.c(2) of the Conditions 

21 also adds rental expenses as an additional measure 

22 or form of coverage if the insured is ejected or 

23 removed from the premises. 

24 Lastly, I would like to note that I 

25 understand that the Office of Public Insurance 
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Counsel will comment on Section 5 and request that 

there be a reinstatement of a sentence concerning 

the right to object to counsel for reasonable 

cause, and we will support that. 

Are there any questions? 

MR. DURDEN: Perhaps the obvious, 

but it looks like extensive revisions. Are 

these -- are there other changes or is this 

intended to be non-substantive all changes or 

MR. GOSDIN: Sir, I would say these 

are substantive changes. They are somewhat 

significant changes and they are beneficial, in my 

view. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. 

MR. CARTER: The title office staff 

16 is concerned about this agenda item because we 

17 don't have the usual strike-throughs and underlines 

18 to help us identify the specific changes; it's more 

19 

20 

of a substitution of one item for another. So that 

is of concern. We also will probably add changes 

21 to our Agenda Item 73 so that we would be amending 

22 the T-1R, pursuant to House Bill 3768, which 

23 extends coverage to certain successors in interest. 

24 We may have some housecleaning changes as well if 

25 the agenda item is to be adopted. 
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MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

MR. GOSDIN: May I interject? We 

3 would be glad to work with staff if there is 

84 

4 anything we can do to clarify their changes. Thank 

5 you. 

6 MR. DURDEN: I think Mr. Bedell has 

7 a comment. Good morning. 

8 MR. BEDELL: Good morning, 

9 Mr. Durden, Ms. Waitt. Kergin Bedell for the 

10 Office of Public Insurance Counsel. 

11 As Mr. Carter noted, this isn't 

12 this agenda item isn't marked up as they are 

13 traditionally. But we did find one change that 

14 Stewart Title has requested, and we would urge the 

15 Commissioner not to adopt. It's in Section 5, 

16 Handling a Claim or Legal Action, in Paragraph d. 

17 The third sentence deals with the 

18 policyholder's ability to disapprove the title 

19 company's choice of attorney for reasonable cause. 

20 We would like to have that sentence 

21 added back in. That sentence occurs in another 

22 section of the policy but -- so taking it out of 

23 this section doesn't make sense to OPIC. And the 

24 section that it occurs in is the Duty to Defend; I 

25 believe it's Section 3. 
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MR. DURDEN: Okay. 

MR. BEDELL: Any questions? 

1 

2 

3 MR. DURDEN: No, sir. And I think I 

4 understood Mr. Gosdin to say you're agreeable to 

5 that change? 

6 MR. GOSDIN: Yes. That's In 

7 Section 5. 

8 MR. DURDEN: All right. 

9 Anyone else wishing to present 

10 comments on Agenda Item 2012-53? 

11 MS. FRYER: Mr. Durden, I would just 

12 note that originally when we filed this agenda 

13 item, we did not have it marked up with 

14 strike-throughs and underlining, but we did file a 

15 subsequent amended version of it that did have the 

16 strike-throughs and the underlining. So if people, 

17 for some reason, did not get copies of the revised 

18 form, I will be happy to send those out 

19 electronically tomorrow, but I thought that they 

20 were provided to everyone. 

21 MR. DURDEN: Okay. All right. 

22 Thank you. 

23 MR. RUTLEDGE: Mr. Durden, TLTA has 

24 received the marked-up copy and it was amended from 

25 the original filing, and TLTA supports the amended 
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MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

Anyone else wishing to provide 

comments on this Agenda Item 53? 
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1 

2 

3 
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8 

9 

All right. Then, Mr. Gosdin, on to 

10 

11 

54. 

MR. GOSDIN: Yes. The subject of the 

moment, creditors' rights. 

MR. DURDEN: I knew we would get to 

it. 

MR. GOSDIN: This next agenda item 

12 consists of an amendment to the Form T-11, Policy 

13 of Title Insurance (USA), to add an exclusion, 

14 Exclusion 5, which is a creditors' rights 

15 exclusion. 

16 The implementation of this exclusion 

17 lS consistent with Section 2502.006 of the 

18 Insurance Code, which was adopted last year, and 

19 which prohibits the coverage as to certain 

20 creditors' rights issues arising out of the current 

21 or insured transaction. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. CARTER: The title office has no 

objections. We may have some minor formatting 

changes just for internal consistency. 

MR. DURDEN: All right. 
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1 Anyone else wishing to provide 

2 comments on Agenda Item 2012-547 

3 MR. RUTLEDGE: TLTA also supports 

4 this agenda item. 

5 

6 

7 Item 55. 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

All right. Mr. Gosdin, on Agenda 

87 

8 MR. GOSDIN: Agenda Item 2012-55 also 

9 relates to the creditors' rights issue, as required 

10 by Section 2502.006 of the Insurance Code, and for 

11 the Loan Policy of Title Insurance as proposed to 

12 be called Endorsement Form T-38, pursuant to 

13 P-9.b(3), which is one of the longer form titles 

14 you will see. 

15 And this form does several things. 

16 It adds the creditors' rights exclusion, it also 

17 modernizes and updates the language consistent with 

18 other forms, such as the Loan Policy. 

19 MR. CARTER: On Agenda Item 55 --

20 this is Rob Carter with the title office. On 

21 Agenda Item 55, we're fine with this one. We may 

22 have a typo to correct, in terms of the subsection 

23 description in the heading. 

24 

25 

MR. GOSDIN: Too many Bs. 

MR. CARTER: Not enough hives. 
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MR. GOSDIN: To Bs or not to Bs. 

Sorry, I couldn't help it; it just comes out. 

MR. DURDEN: Anyone else wishing to 

provide comments on Agenda Item 2012-55? 

MR. RUTLEDGE: TLTA supports the 

agenda item, no matter how many Bs it has in it. 

MR. DURDEN: That's good, we have a 

little humor interjected, worked in. 

All right. Item 2012-56, 

Mr. Gosdin. 

MR. GOSDIN: Item 2012-56 also 

concerns the creditors' rights issue and is 

required, we believe, pursuant to Section 2502.006 

of the Insurance Code. In connection with 

assignments and the issuance of the assignment 

endorsement, pursuant to Endorsement 

Instruction III, this proposal would include an 

additional creditors' rights exclusion. I might 

say, it's consistent with the ALTA form of the 

assignment endorsements that has such an exclusion. 

It also modernizes certain language 

in the form; for example, consistent with reference 

to a Loan Policy and other matters. And it also 

updates the language concerning promissory note. 

If you look at the bottom of the 
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1 first page, you see the last sentence is stricken 

2 and a substitution occurs on the next page at the 

3 bottom part of the added language. So there is a 

4 reference to not only the fact that the note is 

5 endorsed and delivered but also if the note is a 

6 transferable record, that the S&E has control of 

7 the single authoritative copy. This is consistent 

8 with the language of the Informal Electronic 

9 Transactions Act which has been adopted in Texas. 

10 IxIR. CARTER: The title office has no 

11 objections to this In substance; although, we might 

12 simply incorporate it into our Agenda Item 89, 

13 which I think will reference more sections even. 

14 IxIR. GOSDIN: We support that 

15 approach. 

16 IxIR. DURDEN : That was 89, staff Item 

17 89, Mr. Carter? 

18 

19 

IxIR. CARTER: Yes, sir. 

IxIR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

20 Anyone else wishing to provide 

21 comments on Agenda Item 56? 

22 IxIR. RUTLEDGE: TLTA supports the 

23 agenda item and have no objection to having it 

24 incorporated into Agenda Item 89. 

25 IxIR. DURDEN : Thank you. 
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1 Okay. Let's go to the next item, 

2 2012-57. 

3 MR. GOSDIN: Agenda Item 2012-57 does 

4 not concern creditors' rights, it relates to the 

5 Mortgagee Policy Aggregation Endorsement as 

6 proposed to be changed. Number one, it would 

7 modernize language consistent with the loan policy 

8 and correct references to the appropriate sections 

9 to the current loan policy, which is a modification 

10 of the 2006 ALTA, American Land Title Association, 

11 Loan Policy. 

12 It also includes bracketed language, 

13 therefore, that language is optional, to provide 

14 that the amount of insurance may be stated to be a 

15 specified lesser amount with regard to the Texas 

16 policies where you have a large transaction, so 

17 that there can be facilitation of compliance with 

18 our single risk limits. 

19 MR. CARTER: The title office staff 

20 has no objections. 

21 MR. RUTLEDGE: And TLTA supports the 

22 agenda item as well. 

23 MR. DURDEN: All right. 

24 Anyone else wishing to provide 

25 comments on Agenda Item 2012-57? 
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Okay. Proceed. 1 

2 

3 

MR. GOSDIN: Thank you. The next 

agenda item is 2012-58. And this concerns what is 

4 currently called the Insured Closing Service, T-50 

5 Form, which is issued to lenders in connection with 

6 a closing of the real estate transaction. 

7 This is the form which is 

8 substantially the American Land Title Association 

9 single transaction letter, which was revised 

10 effective December 1st of last year, in which we 

11 use in a great majority of states in the United 

12 States. However, there are changes which I do want 

13 to point out to you. 

14 First of all, this form does not 

15 refer to approved attorneys because we do not have 

16 that concept in Texas. 

17 Secondly, if you go to the second 

18 page, you will see in Paragraph B, there lS a 

19 reference to the promulgated loan policy forms, 

20 the T-2 and the T-2R, which is the Short Form 

21 Residential Loan Policy. 

22 Thirdly, Paragraph C, which is the 

23 provision we have in the single transaction letter 

24 so that the underwriter can manage its risk with 

25 regard to a letter and have an identified amount. 
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And we choose a default amount ourselves in 1 

2 

3 

different -- for the United States, where we can do 

so. This would provide that the default number is 

4 $3 million, but that number could be modified; it 

5 could be a greater number based upon the 

6 transaction or upon a request of the customer and 

7 the approval of the title insurer. 

8 Fourthly, Paragraph 2 lS modified 

9 from the ALTA letter to delete the word Negligence 

10 where it appears twice. 

11 Fourthly -- excuse me, I'm losing 

12 count, I'm afraid. Next, we have on the last page, 

13 we have what is the proposed Paragraph No.7, the 

14 last sentence has not been substantively modified 

15 with regard to the time period to bring a claim 

16 that has been retained. That is not the American 

17 Land Title Association period, which is simply one 

18 year from the date of the letter; that is, it 

19 provides for two years from the date of the 

20 closing. 

21 And then next, Paragraph 8, is not 

22 the current form language of the ALTA single 

23 transaction letter, rather it's substantially the 

24 same as the prior and existing T-50 Form in Texas. 

25 And I think, substantially, it's the same. It does 
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say, "The protection of this letter extends only to 

real property transactions in Texas," which lS 

consistent with Texas law as well. 

MR. DURDEN: I think I have a couple 

of questions on this one. One I think is pretty 

basic, but why conform to the ALTA form? 

MR. GOSDIN: Why conform, generally 

speaking? 

MR. DURDEN: Yes. 

MR. GOSDIN: Because, first of all, 

11 we find that there is general market acceptance for 

12 

13 

14 

the American Land Title Association form. Some of 

the changes are made because of customer benefits 

and some for clarification, from our perspective as 

15 well. So it's an evolving product that involves 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

both the customer benefits and our benefits for 

clarity. 

MR. DURDEN: Thanks. And then on 

Page I, it looks like Reimburse is changed to 

Indemnify. Is that a do you consider that a 

substantive change or 

MR. GOSDIN: In my opinion, it's not 

a substantive change. It is consistent with what 

24 we do in other insurance forms; as a title insurer, 

25 we indemnify against actual loss -- or actual 
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1 monetary loss. 

2 MR. DURDEN: So you don't anticipate 

3 really a change in practice; is that a fair 

4 statement to say? You're saying it's consistent 

5 with what you do, so --

6 

7 

MR. GOSDIN: That is correct. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. I don't think I 

8 have any other questions. 

9 Mr. Carter. 

10 MR. CARTER: Rob Carter with the 

11 title office. In addition to the issues that 

12 you've highlighted, Mr. Durden, we also have a 

13 concern with the dropping of the word Negligence 

14 from the ALTA form as something that's being 

15 covered. We would oppose this agenda item if it 

16 reduces coverage in any way. So we don't 

17 particularly support this one. 

18 MR. DURDEN: And, I'm sorry, 

19 Mr. Carter, can you direct me to where you are 

20 there? 

21 MR. GOSDIN: Was it Paragraph 2 

22 you're talking about? 

23 

24 

MR. CARTER: Paragraph 2 on Page 2. 

MR. GOSDIN: Mr. Durden, I would say 

25 on behalf of Stewart Title Guaranty Company -- I 
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1 can speak for no other group in this respect -- but 

2 we would support the reinstatement of those words; 

3 that is, the word Negligence two times in 

4 Paragraph 2, as a matter that would be then 

5 supported by the Department staff, as we 

6 understand. 

7 MR. CARTER: We would be generally 

8 okay with that in the title office. 

9 MR. DURDEN: I think we have a 

10 different Paragraph 2. 

11 MR. GOSDIN: We have a number of 

12 Paragraph 2s. 

13 MR. CARTER: Are you on Page 2? It's 

14 the first No.2 on Page 2. 

15 MS. WAITT: Starting out with Fraud, 

16 theft or dishonesty? 

17 

18 

MR. CARTER: Correct. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. I guess the 

19 change isn't shown. 

20 MR. CARTER: So just the word 

21 Negligent should be put back in; sort of giving a 

22 laundry list, like, dishonesty, things like that. 

23 

24 

25 filing. 

MR. DURDEN: Right. I got you. 

MR. GOSDIN: That was in our original 
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1 MR. DURDEN: Okay. Anyone else 

2 wishing to provide comments on Agenda Item 2012-58? 

3 MS. FRYER: Could you repeat that, 

4 Mr. Durden; what was the question? 

5 MR. DURDEN: I was asking did anyone 

6 else have comments on Agenda Item 2012-58, but I 

7 think Ms. waitt has a comment or question. 

8 MS. WAITT: I wanted to clarify with 

9 Mr. Carter that if the word Negligence is included 

10 in Paragraph 2 on Page 2, then there would be no 

11 reduction in coverage. Is that correct? 

12 MR. CARTER: That's the way we 

13 interpret it, yes. 

14 

15 

MS. WAITT: And would you agree? 

MR. GOSDIN: Yes. I think the 

16 overall result would still be beneficial to the 

17 customer and it would not be a reduction. 

18 

19 

MS. WAITT: Thank you. 

MR. DURDEN: Anyone else wishing to 

20 provide comments on 2012-58? 

21 MR. RUTLEDGE: Mr. Durden, Tom 

22 Rutledge on behalf of TLTA. We support the agenda 

23 item as amended and submitted by Stewart. We 

24 support the Paragraph 2 that does not include 

25 Negligence in that paragraph. And I am of the 
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impression that Negligence is not in the existing 

form that's been promulgated. It was in the 

original filing, and Mr. Gosdin will know this for 

sure, I'm sure -- and, Jim, correct me if I'm wrong 

about that. Negligence was included in the 

original agenda item as filed; it is not in this 

agenda item. We do not support the amendment to 

put Negligence back in. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. Am I 

understanding you to say the current form doesn't 

have it? 

MR. RUTLEDGE: To my knowledge. 

MR. GOSDIN: May I cormnent? 

MR. DURDEN: Yes, Mr. Gosdin. 

MR. GOSDIN: I agree that it's not 

the current Form T-50. It is in the form that we 

are now using in almost 40 states, because we're 

in 

using the single transaction letter, the ALTA 

December 1, 2011 effective date. Now, I'm speaking 

20 only for Stewart, but that is the American Land 

21 Title Association form, which was recormnended by 

22 the Title Insurance Forms Committee, and was 

23 adopted by the Board of the American Land Title 

24 Association December 1st of last year. 

25 MR. DURDEN: Thank you for that 
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1 clarification. 

2 Mr. Carter. 

3 MR. CARTER: The title office would 

4 definitely prefer the use of the word Negligence. 

5 There is no reason for Texas consumers to have less 

6 protection than in most of the other states. It 

7 should also be helpful, in terms of helping people 

8 outside the state have a more uniformed approach in 

9 Texas to the states that they're dealing with. 

10 MR. RUTLEDGE: Mr. Durden, may I 

11 respond to that? 

12 

13 

MR. DURDEN: Sure. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: The standard of proof 

14 for simple negligence is entirely different than 

15 the standard of proof for fraud, theft or 

16 dishonesty, which carries with it the concept of 

17 mens rea; that is, dishonesty, per se. 

18 The Insured Closing Protection 

19 Letter, historically that's been in use in Texas, 

20 was put there to prevent fraud, theft and 

21 dishonesty from being the cause of the loss to the 

22 lender. By the inclusion of a simple negligence 

23 standard, under civil law, you change substantially 

24 the burden of proof and what is necessary to prove 

25 a claim under the letter. And it is for that 
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1 reason that we think it should not be included in 

2 this letter. It hasn't been in the past, per se, 

3 and it shouldn't be now. The fact that it may be 

4 included in other states, that certainly is 

5 relevant but doesn't make it right and doesn't make 

6 it a good idea. 

7 MR. DURDEN: All right. Thank you. 

8 Anyone else wishing to comment on 

9 this issue or this agenda item? 

10 Thank you, Mr. Gosdin. 

11 MS. FRYER: Stewart Title's next 

12 agenda item is 2012-59, and John Rothermel is going 

13 to address that agenda item for us. 

14 

15 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

MR. ROTHERMEL: This is John 

16 Rothermel with Stewart Title. 

17 To anticipate your question, 

18 Mr. Durden, this agenda item is an ALTA form, 

19 17.2-6. What it does is provide coverage for the 

20 access to utilities for certain commercial 

21 transactions. And the kinds of utilities that the 

22 title company would have to check are check boxes 

23 that would be all or some, whatever is appropriate 

24 to the proposal. And basically what it does is it 

25 sets out that the easements are not prohibitive 
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1 from getting to the property because of gaps or 

2 gores in the boundaries, rights-of-way, termination 

3 of rights. 

4 So it's a minor thing to have to look 

5 at but it's something that has become something 

6 that's been asked for quite a few times recently 

7 and we haven't been able to provide it. 

8 It is a new coverage because, right 

9 now, we just take exception to easements and don't 

10 provide any title insurance coverage for the 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

affirmative existence of a particular utility. It 

doesn't insure that it's there, just that it can be 

there. And it is based on the ALTA form. 

MR. CARTER: The title office does 

not support this agenda item; however, we don't 

think it really covers much. So if it 1S adopted, 

I would just point out that the rate rule proposal, 

18 which has been withdrawn, was for $100. So I would 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

just like the record to reflect that the title 

office doesn't see any particular value in the 

endorsement. If it is adopted, I would hope that 

that would not be seen as a comment one way or the 

another on the now withdrawn rate rule proposal of 

attaching $100 to this. 

MR. DURDEN: Mr. Rothermel, any 
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comments on staff's comments? 

MR. ROTHERMEL: Well, we withdrew the 

1 

2 

3 proposed rate rule for two basic reasons. One, it 

4 was a new rate for a new coverage which didn't seem 

5 appropriate for this hearing, and we also were in 

6 negotiations with the Department and the TLTA as to 

7 what the rate should be. 

8 I think the form -- it's one of those 

9 forms that's rarely asked for; but when it's asked 

10 for, it's important to actual customers who really 

11 want this form. And so I think the form needs to 

12 be adopted. As we do so many times, it doesn't 

13 need -- it can't be used until there lS a rate. 

14 And so we're perfectly willing to 

15 defer the discussion of what the rate should be, 

16 whether it's a percentage or that number we 

17 recommended or a different number, but we won't 

18 have a chance to deal with the rate until the rate 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

case. And if we approve a rate before we have a 

form and a rule, we don't get anywhere until we 

come back again. So we would like it to go 

forward, subject to whatever rate we can all agree 

to. 

MR. CARTER: Mr. Durden, the title 

office staff is not suggesting that a rate be 
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1 adopted in this proceeding today, but I do want to 

2 point out that there is a dynamic at play here; and 

3 that is, every time we adopt an endorsement, a 

4 lender may tend to just require it as part of their 

5 version of due diligence. And so we just need to 

6 be aware that even things that seem minor, as 

7 Mr. Rothermel described this endorsement, or as 

8 things that aren't asked for very often right now, 

9 once we adopt an endorsement, there is a danger 

10 that it will just become a part of a checklist, 

11 where the lender just checks off on everything and 

12 that it winds up being a cost. 

13 MR. ROTHERMEL: We don't disagree 

14 with that, but we would point out that even in 72, 

15 which is amended by us and filed by the Department, 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

that it's limited to commercial transactions. And 

so commercial transactions don't have the same 

overall impact on consumers that other kinds of 

rules do. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. 

MR. ROTHERMEL: And then, I suppose, 

we come back and talk about 72 when TDI I mean, 

it's our amendment to their proposal which adopts 

our previous. It's complicated but I don't know 

25 when to talk about it. 
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MR. DURDEN: When that item comes up 

I think would be best. Thanks. 

And I have Mr. Bert Massey wanting to 

provide comments on this item. 

Mr. Massey. 

MAYOR MASSEY: May it please the 

Deputy Commissioner, Bert Massey. I appear here 

only on behalf of my own company, the Brown County 

Abstract Company. And with all due respect to my 

friends at Stewart Title, and my apologies because 

I've not been involved in the negotiations leading 

up to all of these agenda items, I have grave 

concerns about 2012-59. 

How is a title insurance agent in 

Brownwood, Texas, to determine whether or not 

easements interfere with the possible bringing of 

utilities to a building? Despite efforts to 

encroach on it to the contrary, we deal with the 

public record, and the real estate records, probate 

records, clerk -- court records. Where utilities 

are located, whether it be the power company, the 

gas company, the water company or the city sewer, 

is not a matter of public record, unless you go to 

city hall and spend the time to get it. 

I can get it in Brownwood because I 
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was the mayor for 26 years, so they'll give it to 

me. But I wonder if I can get that In Houston. 

Maybe I can get it on-line; I don't know. But can 

you get it in Crockett, can you get it in La Feria? 

It's not a matter of the real estate records and, 

it's, in my opinion, casualty insurance. And I 

hope it's not adopted by the Commissioner. 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you, Mr. Massey. 

John, can you address that. I had an 

initial concern about that and thought I had gotten 

over it; now Mr. Massey raised it again. But is 

this title insurance? 

MR. ROTHERMEL: I believe it is. 

Because what they're asking -- as I mentioned in an 

earlier presentation, we're not saying that there 

is actual -- a line that connects the McDonald's 

building to the line out in the street. What we're 

18 saying is there is no title issues -- no easements, 

19 no problems, no gaps -- that would prevent that 

20 line from going from the street to the building. 

21 And so it's a title issue. 

22 

23 

24 

25 

What you're going to do you may 

actually have to talk to somebody who lS out in 

the -- whose line is out in the street or the alley 

or wherever it is, in a public thoroughfare, but 

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE 
333 GUADALUPE, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78714-9104 



105 

1 you're using the public record to find the 

2 information out. You're also looking at a survey. 

3 Is there -- sometimes in the bigger cities, they'll 

4 reserve a one-foot strip that will prevent you ,from 

5 doing anything until you plat the property. 

6 Those things are dealt with every day 

7 in commercial transactions, and this is just 

8 another form. But we're not saying you have a 

9 utility line in place, what we're saying is you can 

10 get your line from the street to your building. 

11 So, to me, that is a title insurance matter because 

12 you're looking at the record. 

13 MR. DURDEN: Okay. Thank you. 

14 Anyone else wishing to provide 

15 comments on Agenda Item 2012-597 

16 MR. RUTLEDGE: TLTA supports the 

17 agenda item. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

We'll move on to Agenda Item 2012-60. 

Ms. Fryer. 

MS. FRYER: Mr. Durden, Agenda 

22 Item 2012-60 and 61 have both been withdrawn. So 

23 we will now do 2012-62 through 2012-67, and Jim 

24 Gosdin will lay those out for Stewart Title. Thank 

25 you. 
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MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

Mr. Gosdin, on 62. 

1 

2 

3 MR. GOSDIN: Yes, sir. Mr. Durden, 

4 Ms. Waitt, members of the staff, Agenda Item 

5 2012-62 concerns the Restrictions, Encroachments, 

6 Minerals Endorsement for the Loan Policy, the T-19. 

7 This will be a substantial revision 

8 or rewrite of the form. The American Land Title 

9 Association Forms Committee worked on a revision to 

10 the ALTA nine series, which is where this derives, 

11 for over a couple of years and have finally come up 

12 with forms that are proposed for approval, and 

13 actually were voted for approval by the Board, 

14 effective April 2nd. 

15 The forms you see, which are both the 

16 T-19 and the T-19.1, incorporate those changes but 

17 also add some provisions to be consistent with the 

18 pre-existing form to maintain the current level of 

19 coverage that we have in the T-19 and the T-19.1. 

MR. DURDEN: Can I interrupt you 

just a second? 

MR. GOSDIN: Yes. 

MR. DURDEN: You said adopted by the 

Board --

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 MR. GOSDIN: -- of the American Land 
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Title Association. So those revisions are to be 

effective April 2nd. 

MR. DURDEN: . Thank you. 

MR. GOSDIN: The first form, the 

T-19, is revised in Paragraph 2, for example, to 

add definitions. One of the definitions is Private 

7 Right. 

8 In order to deal with a matter of 

9 what was addressed by former Paragraph 1.b.ii, and 

10 you'll see a line-through on the first page. In 

11 order to address it in a way that would be feasible 

12 for the title companies and provide real coverage 

13 for the insured lender and the owner as well, and 

14 that will be addressed in Paragraph 3.e, where 

15 there is insurance as to enforcement of a private 

16 right in a covenant affecting the title that 

17 results in invalidity, unenforceability, or lack of 

18 priority of the lien of the insured mortgage, or 

19 causes a loss of title if they acquire by deed of 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

foreclosure. So that's the way that is revised. 

Paragraph No. 3 continues to have 

the priority coverage, otherwise given in 

Paragraph 3.a. Paragraph 3.b provides lnsurance as 

to violations of enforceable covenants at the date 

of policy. Paragraph 3.c provides insurance as to 

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE 
333 GUADALUPE, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78714-9104 



108 

1 enforced removal of an improvement by reason of 

2 violation of a building setback line. 

3 Paragraph 3.d is the coverage with regard to a 

4 notice of an environmental violation recorded in 

5 

6 

7 

8 

the public records. Those are consistent with the 

prior form that we have in Texas. 

Paragraph 4 is the encroachment 

coverage. In Subsections a, b and c, you will see 

9 the insurance as to encroachments of improvements 

10 onto adjoining land or from adjoining land onto the 

11 land, unless there is an exception Schedule B, a 

12 final court order, and shows against the final 

13 court order recording removal from any land, 

14 adjoining land of an encroachment and damage to an 

15 improvement that encroaches onto an easement. 

16 Paragraph 4.d is expanded coverage 

17 with regard to minerals because it includes not 

18 only damage to improvements by reason of use of the 

19 surface for development or extraction of minerals, 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

but also other subsurface substances. It can be 

difficult, actually, In some circumstances, to 

determine whether an item is a mineral or not. And 

then there are a number of items that would be 

that are substances that would be of significant 

importance and could interfere -- development could 
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interfere with use of the surface, even though 

they're not technically minerals. So we think this 

3 is a good and beneficial coverage. 

4 Paragraph No. 5 is a clarification 

5 with regard to carve-outs that have existed. 

6 You'll see, for example, 5.a, lease; 5.b, 

7 maintenance, repair or remediation; and 5.c, 

8 certain environmental protection matters. 5.d and 

9 5.e are new clarifications with regard to matters 

10 that are not in the nature of title insurance; for 

11 example, including contamination, subsidence and 

12 negligence by a person trying to extract or develop 

13 minerals or other subsurface substances. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. 

Mr. Carter. 

MR. CARTER: Deputy Commissioner 

Durden, the title office does not support Agenda 

Item 62 at this time. The original agenda item 

filed by Stewart in January was fairly minor in 

scope but new amended versions were filed on 

February 10th and February 21st. And those 

filings, to my mind, don't sufficiently underline 

and strike through what is being changed. I mean, 

it's just like a bulk strike-through and a bulk 

underlining, so we have not been able to identify 
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1 all of the changes that may be encompassed in this 

2 agenda item. 

3 It may be that we're able to make a 

4 better judgment about that once we have reviewed 

5 the transcript and can go through Mr. Gosdin's 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

comments this morning. But as of today, we don't 

have enough information on this one to give you a 

yes or no. 

I do note that references to minerals 

are expanded to minerals and subsurface materials, 

so that might wind up being a lessening of 

coverage. And so it's that sort of thing that we 

just need to pour through with a fine-tooth comb. 

MR. GOSDIN: If I can interject. 

MR. DURDEN: Sure. 

MR. GOSDIN: The addition of the 

17 subsurface substances is without question an 

18 expansion of coverage, because we were insuring 

19 against damage to an improvement resulting from the 

20 exercise of the right to use the surface of the 

21 land for extraction or development of minerals. 

22 What we've done is add another item, a coverage: 

23 

24 

25 

Or any other subsurface substance. That is not 

going to be a reduction in coverage, that's gOlng 

to be an expansion of coverage. 
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1 That was the intent when this was 

2 originally changed in the ALTA form several years 

3 ago. But it is not -- I understand, but it is not 

4 a reduction in coverage. 

5 We certainly would be glad to work 

6 with staff with regard to trying to underline some 

7 of these changes. Many of these changes are 

8 totally new, though. For example, Paragraph 1 and 

9 Paragraph 2 are simply new. Those are definitions, 

10 for example, in Paragraph 2 and just weren't in the 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

prior form. 

show where 

But we would be glad to go over it 

the comparable provisions are. 

MR. CARTER: Okay. 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

Any other comments on Agenda Item 

MR. RUTLEDGE: TLTA supports the 

17 agenda item as amended by Stewart. 

18 

19 

20 

MR. DURDEN: All right. 

Mr. Gosdin, go on to 2012-63. 

MR. GOSDIN: This agenda item was 

and 

62? 

21 amended this morning and you have copies in front 

22 of you. 

23 The amendment relates to certain 

24 language regarding improvements to be parallel with 

25 respect to the change that was made to the T-19, to 
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1 refer to improvements affixed to either the land or 

2 adjoining land; it said before affixed to the land. 

3 But now it would say affixed to the land or 

4 adjoining land, because we are insuring against 

5 encroachments by improvements located on adjoining 

6 land onto this land as well. 

7 MR. DURDEN: Is that the primary 

8 change between what I had last night and this 

9 morning? 

10 MR. GOSDIN: That is the difference, 

11 yes. 

12 

13 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. 

MR. GOSDIN: Agenda item -- this 

14 Agenda Item 2012-63 is a proposed revision of 

15 T-19.1. It would be parallel to the T-19 and it 

16 would, for example, add the new definitions in 

17 Paragraph 2 that are not in the existing form. And 

18 it would include in Paragraph 3, the insurance 

19 against violation of enforceable covenant, as we 

20 have in the current T-19.1; insurance against 

21 enforcement of any -- enforced removal of an 

22 improvement by reason of a violation of setback 

23 lines; and insurance against a notice of a 

24 violation of an environmental covenant that lS 

25 shown in the public records. 
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1 It would have a new Paragraph 3.d, 

2 which insures against enforcement of a private 

3 right, which is a defined term; it's a new 

4 definition. You'll see on the top of that page, 

5 "'Private Right' means an option to purchase; a 

6 right of first refusal; or a right of prior 

7 approval. " 

8 So it not only insures against 

9 violations of covenants but it also insures against 

10 the enforcement of that private right as of the 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

date of the policy. That would be a new provision 

and a substitution for what had formerly been 

Paragraph 1.b of the Endorsement with regard to 

certain private right matters. 

Paragraphs 4.a through c relate to 

encroachments. As in the current form, 

encroachment of an improvement onto adjoining land 

or the portion of land subject to an easement; 

insurance against an encroachment of an improvement 

onto adjoining land onto the land, unless there is 

an exception Schedule B. Paragraph 4.b, insurance 

against a final court order requiring removal from 

any land adj oining the land of an encroachment. 

And Paragraph 4.c, damage to improvements that 

encroach into an easement; this is similar to the 
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2 

3 

4 

language in the T-19. 

Paragraph 4.d is the parallel 

language regarding minerals and other subsurface 

substances. Formerly, the endorsement had not 

5 referred to "or covered other subsurface 

6 substances;" this will be a new additional 

7 coverage. 

8 And then we have the similar 

9 carve-outs in Paragraph 5 as appear in the 

10 T-19 endorsement as well. 

114 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

And as I noted, I will be glad to, In 

coordination with Cathy, submit to staff some 

additional lining to try to trace the changes; 

although, many of the changes are simply totally 

new. 

MR. DURDEN: Great. 

Mr. Gosdin, let me ask you just one 

question of clarification. On your Justification, 

the first sentence says, "Identification of the 

terms of a covenant, condition, or restrictions 

should be satisfied by reference to the recorded 

document." I'm not sure I'm following your point 

there. 

MR. GOSDIN: Oh, that was a 

Justification for the former submission and it's 
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4 

5 
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not particularly -- I don't think it's particularly 

relevant now because we have substantially -- yeah, 

I apologize. 

MR. DURDEN: Not a problem. 

MR. GOSDIN: What that did relate to 

6 was Paragraph 1.b of the Endorsement, which had a 

7 coverage with regard to an instrument referred to 

8 in Schedule B as containing covenants, conditions 

9 or restrictions and, in addition, establishes an 

10 easement and so on, unless there is -- unless 

11 they're expressly excepted in Schedule B. 

12 And the problem that existed with 

13 that is what does it mean to say Expressly excepted 

14 in Schedule B; is that simply a reference to the 

15 instrument, is that a reference to the issue, is it 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

a reference to the subparagraph and so on. So it 

was really not clear, and that was an attempt. And 

this is an attempt to clarify, too. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. Thank you for 

that. 

Mr. Carter. 

MR. CARTER: Same comments as before; 

we look forward to hearing from Stewart about the 

specific changes. Thank you. 

MR. DURDEN: Anyone else wishing to 
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1 provide comments on 2012-63? 

2 MR. RUTLEDGE: Mr. Durden, TLTA 

3 supports the agenda item as submitted by Stewart. 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 4 

5 All right. I think we're at a good 

6 stopping point. We need to give our court reporter 

7 a little time, let everybody catch their breath; 

8 we've been rocking along pretty good. 

9 One hour, does that sound okay? 

10 Let's take an hour break and we'll come back about 

11 1:05 and resume with Mr. Gosdin. 

12 Thank you. 

13 (Whereupon a lunch recess was taken.) 

14 

15 MR. DURDEN: All right. Welcome 

16 back. We are resuming Docket No. 2732, which is 

17 the 2012 Texas title periodic hearing relating to 

18 adoption of rules and other matters relating to the 

19 regulation of the business of title lnsurance. 

20 We will pick up where we left off, 

21 with several Stewart Title agenda items. 

22 And, Mr. Gosdin, please come up on 

23 2012-64. Good afternoon. 

24 MR. GOSDIN: Good afternoon. The 

25 first agenda item is 2012-64, which consists of an 
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1 amendment to Leasehold Owner's Policy Endorsement. 

2 These changes incorporate changes 

3 that were made to the ALTA leasehold endorsements, 

4 which are the ALTA 13-06 and 13.1-06i things such 

5 as, like, adding the phrase Granted in the lease, 

6 Property for Chattels, and so oni basically, 

7 technical things. 

8 The one change that you will see on 

9 the third page is Paragraph 3.f, and this provides 

10 an elaboration of what the costs are to secure a 

11 replacement leasehold that's reasonably equivalent 

12 to the leasehold estate. 

13 MR. CARTER: The title office staff 

14 has no objections to that agenda item. There are a 

15 few places where we think the words Tenant and 

16 Insured may have been used incorrectly and we'll 

17 probably make some changes along those lines. 

18 They're not always internally consistent, but I 

19 would say the same thing about the ALTA form 

20 itself. So we'll work to try and make sure that 

21 we're saying Insured when we really mean to and 

22 Tenant when appropriate. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. 23 

24 And, Mr. Gosdin, this is a situation 

25 where we're conforming to the ALTA form. Is that 
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1 correct? 

2 MR. GOSDIN: Yes. I believe this is 

3 the version, as I recall, that was adopted last 

4 year. 

5 MR. DURDEN: Okay. Thank you. 

6 Is there anyone else that wishes to 

7 provide comments on Agenda Item 2012-64? 

8 MR. RUTLEDGE: Mr. Durden, Tom 

9 Rutledge on behalf of TLTA. TLTA supports the 

10 agenda item as amended by Stewart. 

11 

12 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

Okay. Then we're up to Agenda 

13 Item 2012-65. 

14 MR. GOSDIN: Yes, sir; thank you. 

15 Agenda Item 2012-65 consists of amendments to the 

16 Owners -- Residential Owner's Leasehold 

17 Endorsement, the T-4R. Those are consistent with 

18 the changes that were made to the T-4 Endorsement; 

19 you'll see the underlining. 

20 But, really, the change that was of 

21 substance and, actually, I believe in this one was 

22 the only change, was Paragraph 3.f, to be 

23 consistent and to provide what costs could be 

24 incurred that would be used to secure a replacement 

25 leasehold estate, and those were the language of 

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE 
333 GUADALUPE, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78714-9104 



119 

1 3.f of the T-4 as well. 

MR. DURDEN: Right. 2 

3 MR. CARTER: Again, the title office 

4 has no objection to the substance of this agenda 

5 item. We want to be careful, though, that we're 

6 not reducing the coverage in any way in Item 3.f on 

7 Page 2. 

8 MR. DURDEN: Okay. 

9 Anyone else wishing to provide 

10 comments; did you have a comment on that, 

11 Mr. Gosdin? 

12 MR. GOSDIN: Yes. The idea behind 

13 this was to provide an illustration -- not an 

14 illustration but a list of costs because, 

15 otherwise, there was uncertainty as to whether 

16 costs a customer might deem to be reasonable were 

17 included, and vice versa. So I think the virtue of 

18 this is it provides some clarity for everybody 

19 concerned. 

20 MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

21 Anyone else want to provide 

22 wishing to provide comments on Agenda Item 2012-65? 

23 MR. RUTLEDGE: TLTA supports the 

24 agenda item as amended by Stewart. 

25 MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 
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1 All right. Our next item is 2012-66. 

2 Mr. Gosdin. 

MR. GOSDIN: Agenda Item 2012-66 3 

4 consists of amendments that were made to the 

5 Leasehold Loan Policy Endorsement. These are 

6 consistent with the prior changes that have been 

7 made to the ALTA 13.1-06, which is the Leasehold 

8 Loan Endorsement; so you'll see those changes. 

9 Those are similar to what you see that were -- the 

10 changes that were made to' the T-4 Endorsement, 

11 including Paragraph 3.f. 

12 MR. CARTER: The title office would 

13 have the same comment. We don't agree to the 

14 substance of the agenda item but, again, we don't 

15 want this listing to be seen as all inclusive or 

16 limiting things that a consumer could be reimbursed 

17 for. 

18 MR. DURDEN: I just want to clarify. 

19 You're saying you agree in concept but you don't-

20 want to --

21 MR. CARTER: Yes. It will require a 

22 little additional study on that Item 3.f, which I 

23 believe is Page 3 of this agenda item. 

24 

25 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

MR. CARTER: In fact, if I could go 
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1 ahead and ask now if Stewart would be amenable to 

2 language, such as Including but not limited to. 

3 MR. GOSDIN: Perhaps we could talk to 

4 you later. I'm trying to think how I could word it 

5 so that it's clear as to the kind of costs that 

6 would be included. And it never was the intent of 

7 the endorsement, for example, to simply pay for a 

8 lease for an ongoing basis but simply those 

9 expenses. It could be something like The expenses 

10 incurred in securing a replacement leasehold or 

11 something of that nature including. So we can talk 

12 about that. 

13 MR. DURDEN: Sounds good. 

14 Anyone else wishing to comment on 

15 Agenda Item 2012-66? 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

MR. RUTLEDGE: Again, TLTA supports 

the amended agenda item. 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

All right. The next item, 2012-67. 

MR. GOSDIN: This is my last item. 

MR. DURDEN: Oh, man. 

MR. GOSDIN: Item 2012-67 consists of 

23 a proposed new endorsement, which is the T-36.1. 

24 There is already an environmental protection 

25 endorsement for land that is primarily residential 
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1 real estate. 

2 There is a commercial environmental 

3 protection endorsement that's been adopted by the 

4 American Land Title Association, as the 8.2-06, 

5 available for both Owner's Policies and Loan 

6 Policies, which you'll see there, insuring with 

7 regard to recorded and environmental protection 

8 liens, either recorded in the local or in the 

9 district court clerk's office. So this is an 

10 endorsement that we have available in most 

11 jurisdictions and it's an ALTA form. 

12 MR. CARTER: The title office has no 

13 objections. 

14 MR. DURDEN: Anyone else having 

15 comments on 2012-67? 

16 MR. RUTLEDGE: TLTA also supports the 

17 agenda item as amended. 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

Thank you, Mr. Gosdin. 

MR. GOSDIN: Thank you. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

MS. FRYER: Mr. Durden, Stewart Title 

has withdrawn its 2012-68. 

MR. DURDEN: Right. 

MS. FRYER: So John Rothermel will 

25 layout our final two remaining agenda items, 
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1 2012-69 and 2012-70. And we do have an amendment 

2 to 72 that will be coming up later. 

3 

4 

5 

6 Mr. Rothermel. 

7 

8 Stewart Title. 

:MR . DURDEN : Okay. Thank you. 

:MR. ROTHERMEL: Good afternoon. 

:MR. DURDEN: Good afternoon, 

:MR. ROTHERMEL: John Rothermel with 

9 There is a typo in the first line of 

10 the Justification of 2012-69; I got too many 

11 whiches in there. That first "which" should be a 

12 "with". That makes a big difference in what we're 

13 talking about. 

14 What this is is an endorsement that 

15 will allow the title company to provide some 

16 assurance, similar to the Leasehold Endorsement, if 

17 a person puts removable -- severable items 

18 removable is a little touchy expression in Texas 

19 but items that are not permanently affixed. 

20 Many times refineries and wind farms 

21 have things that would look pretty affixed to the 

22 land but may technically not be, and those items 

23 produce a tremendous amount of the value in the 

24 property. So a lender, especially, wants to know 

25 that they have a lien and that title defects 
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8 
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10 

11 
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which is why it's title insurance a title defect 

will not cause the forced removal of three wind 

turbines or windmills. 

So we believe that it is a title 

insurance matter and it deals with defects that 

cause the removal of a severable improvement. And 

it's very similar language to -- in the Leasehold 

Form. You won't have a loss under this unless you 

have also a title defect that causes a problem. 

It doesn't insure that something is 

or isn't real or personal property. It affects the 

12 measure of damages. It deals with the diminution 

13 

14 

15 

in value resulting from the defect, reduced by 

salvage value; or moving it a hundred miles. Of 

course, if you're moving it a hundred miles, there 

16 may not be enough wind a hundred miles away for it 

17 to make any difference. 

18 We had dealt with removable items, 

19 but the amendment, after consultation with TLTA and 

20 I think the staff, I took that out. 

21 And I would answer any questions and 

22 then explain the procedural rule when you're ready. 

23 MR. DURDEN: Okay. So with this 

24 endorsement, you're covering the diminution in 

25 value; is that --
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2 

3 

4 defect. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

MR. ROTHERMEL: Or removal. 

MR. DURDEN: Or removal. 

MR. ROTHERMEL: Because of a title 

MR. DURDEN: Defect; right. 

MR. ROTHERMEL: Yes. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. 

125 

MR. CARTER: The title office doesn't 

9 oppose the substance of the agenda item; although, 

10 we do have a section in our Manual for personal 

11 property lien protection. And I would be 

12 interested in Mr. Rothermel's comments on whether 

13 this should be part of that section of the Manual 

14 or if it makes more sense to be in the real 

15 property section. 

16 MR. DURDEN: Mr. Rothermel, if you 

17 don't mind. 

18 MR. ROTHERMEL: It makes more 

19 sense -- I thought about it both ways, but it makes 

20 more sense. Because in the personal property, what 

21 you're insuring is that there is not a lien on the 

22 item itself. And in this one, what you're saying 

23 is that a defect in the real estate will not cause 

24 the forced removal of the item. Whether it's real 

25 estate or whether it's personal property, that's 
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1 really not an issue, so it's really on the real 

2 property side more appropriately, in my opinion. 

3 

4 

5 

MR. CARTER: That's fine. Thank you 

for the clarification. 

MR. DURDEN: Anyone else wishing to 

6 provide comments on Agenda Item 2012-69? 

7 MR. RUTLEDGE: Mr. Durden, TLTA also 

8 supports 2012-69 as amended. 

9 MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

10 Mr. Rothermel, I think we can move 

11 on. 

MR. ROTHERMEL: Okay. On 2012-70, 12 

13 this is the procedural rule to allow the 

14 implementation of the endorsement. And lest 

15 anybody get confused, it applies to the T-l, the 

16 T-2, and then we came back around and said Which is 

17 not residential property. 

18 So this is designed, again, as 

19 clearly as we can make it to be, something that is 

20 a commercial transaction; it's not designed to 

21 affect individual homeowners. 

22 In order to also make it as secure as 

23 we can, we also have in the amendment added in that 

24 the area and boundary amendment has to be met and 

25 paid for, so that we have a really good idea --
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1 which is almost always in a wind farm or one of 

2 these large transactions, you're going to have the 

3 area and boundary amendment anyway -- but this just 

4 makes sure that we have the information that we 

5 need and that it is clearly on a commercial 

6 transaction, and that whatever the survey and the 

7 title search reveal, we can have exceptions, even 

8 in the Endorsement. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. DURDEN: I think you probably 

touched on my issue but --

MR. ROTHERMEL: I tried. 

MR. DURDEN: it seems pretty wide 

open, I think; any exception that the company 

considers in its sole discretion --

MR. ROTHERMEL: That's language that 

is found in a number of our rules, so we wanted to 

be consistent. 

MR. DURDEN: And, I guess, you're 

confident by the fact that that's a commercial 

transaction; is that a fair statement? 

MR. ROTHERMEL: Yes, sir. You 

can't -- you're not supposed to issue a T-2 or a 

T-l, except in very rare situations, on residential 

property. I mean, the rule, where it defines 

residential says, up to 200 acres if they give 
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1 money; I mean, you can't -- but for the most part, 

2 the T-IR and T-2R deal with residential 

3 transactions. And then we're saying Which is not 

4 residential property also. So we tried to nail it 

5 down two different ways. 

6 MR. DURDEN: Okay. Thank you. 

7 Any questions? 

8 Anyone else wishing to provide 

9 comments on Agenda Item 2012-70? 

10 MR. RUTLEDGE: TLTA is also in 

11 support of that agenda item as amended. 

12 MR. DURDEN: All right. Thank you, 

13 Mr. Rothermel; thank you Stewart Title. 

14 We'll now move into, I believe, the 

15 staff agenda items, starting with Item 2012-71. I 

16 recognize Mr. Carter for those. 

17 MR. CARTER: Thank you, Deputy 

18 Commissioner Durden. Most of the TDI items are 

19 housekeeping. 

20 Item 71 adds clarifying 

21 cross-references to the various forms and 

22 procedural rule references in this Rate Rule R-ll. 

23 It is a rate rule but we're, basically, just 

24 cleaning up the language; there is not a 

25 substantive change to a rate. 
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1 My understanding is that there are no 

2 objections to this agenda item, as of yesterday. 

3 MR. DURDEN: All right. Is there 

4 anyone that wants to provide any comments on Item 

5 2012-71? 

6 All right. 

7 MR. CARTER: Item 72 is also 

8 housecleaning. We've tried to work in the concerns 

9 that were raised in TLTA's Agenda Item 15 and 

10 Stewart's Item 51. And, again, I don't think there 

11 are any objections at this point. 

12 MR. DURDEN: I'll recognize 

13 Mr. Rutledge. 

14 MR. RUTLEDGE: Thank you, Mr. Durden; 

15 appreciate that. This agenda item was -- after 

16 being originally filed -- was amended by Stewart 

17 Title Guaranty Company, and they've indicated that 

18 they've withdrawn their agenda item that contained 

19 the substance of their amendments. We filed an 

20 amendment on February 24th to the Stewart Title 

21 Guaranty Company amended version. It was a very 

22 small amendment, small phrase; that was the only 

23 difference that we could see between our agenda 

24 item originally and this one. 

25 And so Mr. Carter is correct, we 
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1 support the agenda item as amended by both Stewart 

2 and by TLTA, and we appreciate both of them in 

3 working with us and cooperating with us in getting 

4 all of the changes into a single item. The benefit 

5 of that is you don't amend one part of the rule 

6 one agenda item in another part of the rule and 

7 another agenda item and have to put them together 

8 later; we've tried to do that work ahead of time. 

9 MR. DURDEN: Thank you. And is your 

10 amendment on Page 3? 

11 MR. RUTLEDGE: I believe that's 

12 right. 

13 MR. DURDEN: I just want to make 

14 sure. 

15 MR. RUTLEDGE: I'm pretty sure that's 

16 right. Yes, sir, it's on Page 3 of 8, and it adds 

17 the phrase As provided for in T-3 Endorsement 

18 Instructions, Item III. 

19 MR. DURDEN: Right. Okay. Thank 

20 you. 

21 MR. RUTLEDGE: But we made other 

22 amendments to this procedural rule in our agenda 

23 item, and those amendments have been incorporated 

24 into here. 

25 MR. DURDEN: Right. Great. 
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Ms. Fryer. 1 

2 MS. FRYER: Mr. Durden, Stewart Title 

3 supports the amendments to P-9 that have been 

4 submitted, both by TDI title office staff and by 

5 TLTA. And I just want to point out for our 

6 amendment, the significant parts are the addition 

7 of Paragraph 9.a.5, which is the procedural rule 

8 for the Utility Access Endorsement, and P.b.16, 

9 which is the -- that has to do with the issuance of 

10 the endorsement on the Owner's Policy. And P.b.16 

11 has to do with the contemporaneous issuance of the 

12 endorsement, the Utility Access Endorsement on the 

13 Loan Policy. 

14 So except for those two changes, 

15 those provisions are identical to one other. And 

16 they are only for commercial transactions, and the 

17 rule does make that clear. 

18 I'll be happy to answer any other 

19 questions about our portion of the amendment to 

20 P-9, if you have any. 

21 MR. DURDEN: So those are the 

22 corresponding rate rules to the agenda items we 

23 considered earlier. 

24 MS. FRYER: Procedural rules, yes, 

25 sir. 
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1 MR. DURDEN: Procedural rules; thank 

2 you. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

All right. I don't think I have any 

questions. Thank you. 

Anyone else wishing to provide 

comments on Agenda Item 2012-72? Thank you. 

Proceed to 73, Mr. Carter. 

MR. CARTER: Thank you. Item 73 adds 

9 Continuation of Coverage language, as per House 

10 Bill 3768; it's similar to Stewart's Item 53. I 

11 don't think there are any objections to that. 

12 MR. DURDEN: Now, the Stewart 

13 proposal has a little more extensive changes or --

14 MR. CARTER: It was more of a 

15 complete replacement to that section of the Manual, 

16 or that portion of the Manual; ours is a little 

17 more defined. 

18 MR. DURDEN: Okay. Anyone else 

19 wishing to provide comments on Agenda Item 2012-73? 

20 All right. Let's move to 74, 

21 please. 

22 

23 

MR. CARTER: Item 74 is an amendment 

to Rate Rule R-5. This is not a substantive 

24 change, it is a conforming change to items that 

25 were adopted in a previous hearing. 
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1 And the same is true of Item 75; it 

2 deals with Rate Rule R-21. Again, it lS just 

3 making conforming changes that needed to be made 

4 based on things that were adopted in an earlier 

5 hearing. 

6 MR. DURDEN: All right. So anyone 

7 have corrrrnents on 2012-74, conforming changes? 

8 And then 2012-75, anyone have 

9 comments they would like to provide on Agenda 

10 Item 75? 

11 

12 

All right. Let's go to 76. 

MR. CARTER: Item 76 just formally 

13 rescinds Rate Rule R-10, which by its terms only 

14 applied to contracts in existence prior to 

15 September of 1975; my understanding is it's no 

16 longer in use. And so just to make it clear, we 

17 would take that out of the Manual. 

18 MR. DURDEN: Anyone have any 

19 corrrrnents they would like to provide on Agenda 

20 Item 012-76? 

21 All right. Let's go to 77, 

22 Mr. Carter. 

23 MR. CARTER: Item 77 would, 

24 basically, be housecleaning as well, in that we 

25 would include a reference to the T-25.1 in this 
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1 rate rule because of an adoption back in the 2008 

2 

3 

title hearing. So it's just a conforming change. 

MR. DURDEN: And is that simi lar 

4 to --

5 MR. CARTER: It's similar to 74 and 

6 75/ in terms of the -- we're just trying to 

7 conform. 

8 MR. DURDEN: No/ I was thinking of 

9 Mr. Hopson's agenda item for Fidelity. 

10 MR. CARTER: Oh, I'm sorry. Yes/ 

11 that's correct. 

12 MR. DURDEN: Okay. Do we need to do 

13 them both or 

14 MR. CARTER: I think we just need to 

15 do one or the other/ so we'll just have to compare 

16 the two and 

17 

18 

19 course. 

20 

21 

MR. DURDEN: Work it out. 

MR. CARTER: We prefer ours/ of 

MR. DURDEN: Imagine that. 

Okay. Thank you. Is there anyone 

22 else that would like to provide comments on Agenda 

23 Item 2012-78 (sic)? 

24 

25 

All right. Let's move to Item 78. 

MR. CARTER: Item 78 is also 
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1 non-substantive; we're just changing the titles of 

2 some of the forms: Owner's to Owner (sic) and 

3 Mortgagee to Loan. But it's non-substantive and 

4 it's based on a statutory change. 

5 MR. DURDEN: Okay. Anyone have 

6 comments on 2012-78? 

7 

8 

All right. Mr. Carter, on 79. 

MR. CARTER: On Item 79, House 

9 Bill 3945 adopted some statutory changes allowing 

10 for a situation where when the title agent can't 

11 track down the lender to get a release of lien that 

12 if they have sufficient knowledge, they can file an 

13 affidavit to show that they're -- showing that lien 

14 as released. This was a change to the Property 

15 Code 2502.003, and this is just conforming to that 

16 statute. 

17 MR. DURDEN: Okay. Would anyone like 

18 to provide comments on Agenda Item 2012-79? 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

supports the 

MR. RUTLEDGE: 

agenda item. 

MR. DURDEN: 

All right. 

MR. CARTER: 

Mr. Durden, TLTA 

Thank you. 

Mr. Carter, on 80. 

On Agenda Item 80, 

24 revising some prior errors In the placement of 

we're 

25 language, referring to deleting subparagraphs. So 
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1 that's, basically, housecleaning. We're also 

2 removing the word Stipulations as we saw as 

3 unnecessary. But this is, basically, housekeeping. 

4 MR. DURDEN: Anyone wishing to 

5 comment on Agenda Item 2012-80? 

6 

7 

All right. Mr. Carter, 81. 

MR. CARTER: On Item 81, again, we're 

8 changing references from Owner's to Owner (sic) and 

9 from Mortgagee to Loan; so those are just 

10 housekeeping. 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

MR. DURDEN: Any comments on Agenda 

Item 2012-80; is that 80? 

MR. CARTER: That was 81. 

MR. DURDEN: Eighty-one; sorry. 

MR. CARTER: And my comments are the 

16 same on 82. We're just changing the names of some 

17 of the forms and doing a little bit of renumbering 

18 but nothing substantive in those changes. 

19 

20 

21 

MR. DURDEN: Any comments on 82? 

All right. Mr. Carter, on 83. 

MR. CARTER: On No. 83, we're just 

22 amending the signature lines in the T-48; I believe 

23 this is non-substantive as well. 

24 MR. DURDEN: Any comments on 

25 2012-83? 
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2 

All right. Mr. Carter. 

MR. CARTER: On Agenda Item 84, 

3 again, we're changing -- did I skip one? 

MR. DURDEN: No, you're good. 

137 

4 

5 MR. CARTER: On 84, we're changing, 

6 again, Mortgagee to Loan and Owner's to Owner 

7 (sic), and taking out the word Stipulations. 

8 MR. DURDEN: Anyone wishing to 

9 comment on Agenda Item 2012-84? 

10 MR. RUTLEDGE: Mr. Durden, Torn 

11 Rutledge with TLTA. In the first provision that 

12 strikes the word Stipulations, it should also 

13 probably strike the word And, which it does the 

14 second time around; it's just a typo. 

15 MR. CARTER: That's correct; thank 

16 you. 

17 MR. DURDEN: Anyone else wishing to 

18 comment on 2012-84? 

19 All right. Then 2012-85, 

20 Mr. Carter. 

21 MR. CARTER: Agenda Item 85, you 

22 already heard referenced by Burnie Burner in what 

23 was the Guaranty Association Item 44. 

24 What we are saying here is that we 

25 will have the right to non-renew an agent who does 
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13 

14 
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16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
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not have an underwriter through the period when 

their renewal time comes up again. We're also 

calling for notification to TDI if the provider of 

an abstract plant changes. We are streamlining 

abstract plant notifications to us, so they will 

not always be required. 

For example, currently, if some 

additional counties are added, we require updated 

information on the abstract plants, even on the 

existing counties. And we would not require that 

anymore; it would just be for the new counties. So 

it's designed to streamline the process. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. 

MR. CARTER: Also at the suggestion 

of the Guaranty Association, we add a requirement 

for a franchise tax report, just as a way of giving 

us one more thing to compare to the information 

that we're receiving in the applications, to make 

sure that officers and directors are consistently 

shown. It's a problem sometimes when an agent goes 

out of business or there is some kind of problem 

along those lines, where we're trying to track 

people down. And to the extent we can compare what 

people are reporting to us versus what they're 

reporting to the Comptroller or the Secretary of 
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1 State, it's helpful to catch things and keep our 

2 database current. 

3 MR. DURDEN: Great. 

4 Is there anyone else who wishes to 

5 provide comments? 

6 Mr. Burner, you want to add anything 

7 to that? 

8 MR. BURNER: Not other than to say we 

9 support it. 

10 MR. DURDEN: Anyone else wishing to 

11 provide comments on 2012-85? 

12 MR. RUTLEDGE: TLTA also supports the 

13 agenda item as amended. 

14 

15 

16 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

All right. Mr. Carter, on 86. 

MR. CARTER: On Item 86, the very 

17 same thing but just for the L-3, as opposed to the 

18 L-l, and I believe those are also agreed to. 

19 MR. DURDEN: Anyone wishing to 

20 provide comments on 2012-86? 

21 MR. RUTLEDGE: TLTA also supports 

22 that agenda item. 

23 

24 

25 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

Mr. Carter, on 87. 

MR. CARTER: On Item 87, in general, 
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escrow officers are supposed to reside in the state 

of Texas. But there was a statutory change made so 

3 that folks living in counties that -- such as in 

4 Arkansas and the Texarkana area, so that they can 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

still be escrow officers. So this just makes a 

conforming change to our forms and also addresses 

the bond that would be required, but it's all just 

implementing 2652.051 and 2652.103. 

MR. DURDEN: Anyone wishing to 

10 provide comments on Agenda Item 2012-87? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

All right. Mr. Carter, on 88. 

MR. CARTER: Agenda Item 88 revises 

our Procedural Rule P-28, which deals with the 

education requirements. And these amendments are 

specifically addressing professional training for 

16 managers. This is implementing sections of 4338, 

17 which weren't changed in the subsequent session of 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

the legislature. But it's, again, designed to 

require some level of expertise among the managers 

involved in title agents. 

MR. DURDEN: Anyone wishing to 

provide comments on 2012-88? 

MR. RUTLEDGE: Mr. Durden, on behalf 

24 of TLTA, we support the agenda item with the 

25 amendments in it and appreciate the opportunity to 
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1 work with TDI title office staff in putting this 

2 together. And we were able to withdraw our 

3 comparable agenda item because this provision 

4 included the changes that we had proposed as well. 

5 MR. DURDEN: Okay. Thank you, 

6 Mr. Rutledge. 

7 Anyone else wishing to provide 

8 comments on 2012-88? 

9 

10 

All right. Mr. Carter, on 89. 

MR. CARTER: On Agenda Item 89, this 

11 adjusts the instructions in our T-3 Form to refer 

12 to the creditors' rights language that was changed 

13 in the statutes recently. These are mostly adding 

14 cross-references and are non-substantive. 

15 MR. DURDEN: Anyone wishing to 

16 provide comments on 2012-89? 

17 And, Mr. Carter, on Agenda 

18 Item 2012-90. 

19 MR. CARTER: Agenda Item 90, this 

20 concerns the stat plan. We are adding codes for 

21 items that were adopted in prior title rule and 

22 rate hearings. So in that sense, it's 

23 housecleaning. As you know, in the recent 

24 legislative session, it was spelled out that we 

25 need to adopt changes to the stat plan in the 

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE 
333 GUADALUPE, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78714-9104 



142 

1 context of a rule or rate hearing. 

2 And the only change or addition I 

3 would make to what we filed is that we might also 

4 add codes for things that are adopted in this 

5 hearing. Again, that shouldn't by substantivei 

6 it's a question of whether or not the item is 

7 adopted or not and we would just add a reporting 

8 code. 

9 MR. DURDEN: So just to make sure I 

10 understand on this one, you're just adopting some 

11 updates to the existing codes to reflect other 

12 changes that have already been adopted. 

13 MR. CARTER: That's correct, and some 

14 clarifying instructions. And the only thing that 

15 might be added to that would be things that would 

16 be adopted in this proceeding. 

17 MR. DURDEN: Okay. Thank you. 

18 Anyone wishing to provide comments on 

19 2012-90? 

20 Mr. Carter, on Agenda Item 91. 

21 MR. CARTER: Item 91 concerns a Short 

22 Sale Affidavit. I first became aware of this lssue 

23 at an NAIC convention late last year. And I think 

24 the first day that I got back to the office, I was 

25 approached by Stewart about it and shortly 
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1 thereafter approached by TLTA. 

2 We have a Rule P-35 that says that 

3 agents can't make any additional assurances or 

4 guarantees over and above what are in the 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

promulgated forms. But as you know, there lS a 

problem with mortgage fraud in this country and the 

federal government is making efforts to try and 

catch mortgage fraud. So they're calling on 

lenders, who then call upon title agents, to make 

10 

11 

12 

13 

various assurances about the transaction that is 

closing. 

In this case, they're wanting what is 

called a Short Sale Affidavit. A short sale is 

14 when someone is being able to pay less than what 

15 they really owed on the house to get out of the 

16 mortgage; it would be an agreement that they would 

17 have reached with the lender. But the federal 

18 authorities are wanting an affidavit from 

19 settlement agents, which would include title 

20 agents, to say that this was an arms-length 

21 transaction and that there were no side deals. 

22 On the one hand, it's great to combat 

23 mortgage fraud, but I think the parties from 

24 industry that got in touch with me are worried that 

25 this goes beyond traditional title insurance. And 
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1 I think it might require an adjustment to our P-35 

2 if we want to allow them to sign those affidavits, 

3 some sort of amendment to P-35 excepting that from 

4 the general prohibition against making additional 

5 assurances. 

6 I think that both Stewart and perhaps 

7 TLTA will want to share their concerns with you. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. So at this point 

Mr. Carter is more just raising the issue; is that 

a fair characterization? 

MR. CARTER: That is correct. 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

I do have a couple of witness cards. 

Janet -- who wants to go first, Janet or Tom; Janet 

Minke. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: I'll lead off on 

behalf of TLTA; Mr. Durden, thank you. 

I've got an exhibit that I would like 

to offer into the record; and don't worry, I'm not 

going to read it. The exhibit consists of three 

parts, essentially. The first are some written 

comments about this issue, and the second is a copy 

of the Freddie Mac regulations that gave rise to 

the issue of the so-called affidavit in short sale 

transactions. The third is a white paper that was 

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE 
333 GUADALUPE, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78714-9104 



145 

1 prepared for the Texas -- I mean, for the American 

2 Land Title Association and presented to the NAIC 

3 working group on title insurance in 2005. 

4 Let me go back to the first -- my 

5 written comments. We call this document that is 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

being asked to be executed by closing agents, 

settlement agents, an affidavit; that's what the 

regulation uses. And the regulation, which you 

have in front of you, specifies the kinds of 

representations that have to be made by the 

affiant, the signatory to the affidavit. And it 

does include some representations of fact and 

otherwise, as you would normally find in an 

affidavit. 

This document goes far, far, far 

beyond that, however. It contains a provision that 

17 is, in fact, a contract of indemnity, in which the 

18 signatory, in this case the title agent or the 

19 direct operation, would actually indemnify the 

20 servicer, who is the lender and Freddie Mac, from 

21 any loss that maybe occurred as a result of the 

22 short sale transaction representations being 

23 misleading. And the losses specifically define to 

24 include repayment of the amount of the reduced 

25 payoff of the mortgage. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

This is Subsection (g) of the 

regulation. It reads, I quote, A signatory who 

makes a negligent or intentional misrepresentation 

agrees to indemnify the Servicer -- that's the 

lender and Freddie Mac for any and all loss 

6 resulting from the misrepresentation including, but 

7 not limited to, repayment of the amount of the 

8 reduced payoff of the mortgage. 

9 Now, 1n Texas law, we have a 

10 definition of this and what we call it in the 

11 Insurance Code 1S mortgage guaranty 1nsurance. 

12 The definition of mortgage guaranty insurance is 

13 found in Section 3502.003 of the Insurance Code, 

14 and it specifically defines it as insurance against 

15 financial loss because of nonpayment of amounts 

16 agreed to be paid under the terms of a note, bond 

17 or other evidence of indebtedness secured by an 

18 authorized real estate security. An authorized 

19 real estate security means, among other things, a 

20 mortgage. 

21 Now, why is that significant? 

22 Because corning back to Title 11 that deals with the 

23 regulation of title insurance, there is a provision 

24 in Title 11 which is known as the mono1ine 

25 prohibition. And it, basically, states that the 

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE 
333 GUADALUPE, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78714-9104 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

147 

title insurance -- a title insurance company, an 

insurer, or a company that writes title insurance, 

cannot write any other line of insurance. That's 

Section 2502.001. 

There is another section -- well, let 

me back up for a second. That section alone 

monoline prohibitions are relatively common; they 

probably apply to a vast majority of states, that 

title insurance is under a monoline requirement, so 

it's not unique to Texas law. And it's one of the 

11 simplest and most direct statements in the 

12 Insurance Code. 

13 As if that were not enough, there is 

14 another provision in Title 11 that specifically 

15 denies title insurance companies from guaranteeing 

16 mortgages; that is, providing mortgage guaranty 

17 insurance. 

18 Now, the reasons for that are 

19 historical, and the third document that I enclose 

20 is the white paper report that I mentioned earlier. 

21 And I'm not going to go into the details of that; 

22 it's not terribly long but it, basically, recites 

23 the horrors of what happened when, in other states, 

24 in the past, insurers were able to write both title 

25 insurance and mortgage guaranty lnsurance. And you 
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1 can see the historical background as to why the 

2 states are prohibiting title insurance companies 

3 now, these days, from writing other kinds of 

4 insurance and perhaps why Texas has an additional 

5 statute that prohibits title companies from writing 

6 mortgage guaranty type insurance. 

7 So I think the law is fairly clear 

8 that, in Texas, title insurance companies cannot 

9 give this kind of indemnification; and as a result, 

10 we don't believe that there is any justification 

11 for amending P-35 that would authorize that to 

12 happen. 

13 The corollary issue here -- and if 

14 you read the white paper report you'll understand 

15 kind of what happened; it was pretty disastrous 

16 is that there is a solvency threat to these 

17 companies by taking on these indemnifications of 

18 

19 

20 

21 

the lenders and the Freddie Mac. And by the way, 

everybody kind of conflates Freddie Mac with the 

federal government; they're really not exactly the 

federal government, even though we own them. So 

22 that's where -- that's the origin of this. 

23 And if it were -- if the document 

24 were limited just to some of the representations of 

25 fact, that's one thing. But the fact that they 
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must enter into an actual contract of indemnity 

places the signatory, if it's a title company, in 

considerable risk; particularly, if there are 

multiple transactions that go on over a period of 

time. 

And we would urge that P-35 not be 

revised to allow that to happen, unless the 

legislature says that it ought to happen and the 

monoline prohibition does not apply and the 

prohibition against guaranteeing mortgages In 

Title 11 does not apply and is amended. 

:MR. DURDEN: Thank you. Do you have 

any idea what is happening in other states on this 

issue? 

:MR. RUTLEDGE: Some states have 

similar, either laws or rules, that prohibit 

similar types of guarantees and representations of 

fact and certifications. It's not cornmon -- not 

every state has that. 

And if you read the regulation, 

Freddie Mac recognizes that if the state -- if your 

state does have such a prohibition, then the --

well, we'll just take it in this case because, I 

guess, it could apply to Realtors and others who 

are parties to the transaction, but the case that 
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1 we're concerned about is the settlement agent. 

2 So where there is a provision like 

3 P-35, the regulation recognizes that the servicer, 

4 the lender, can grant a waiver to the settlement 

5 agent for not signing the so-called affidavit with 

6 something of a penalty to the effect that if they 

7 get the waiver, that settlement agent cannot close 

8 the back end of the short sale transaction within 

9 one year on the same property. So there is a 

10 mechanism for that. 

11 And let me say with respect to the 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

mortgage fraud issue. Yes, mortgage fraud is a 

very real issue but there are a lot of signatories 

that are required to sign this so-called affidavit; 

the settlement agent 1S not the only one. So there 

are other safety valves that the lender and Freddie 

Mac can rely on without binding the settlement 

agent and, you know, Realtors and buyers and 

sellers; they don't have a monoline prohibition in 

the statute. 

MR. DURDEN: Is the agreement in this 

package? 

MR. RUTLEDGE: That's a good 

question. They have not promulgated an agreement. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. 
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MR. RUTLEDGE: They allow the 

servicer to promulgate their own agreement/ as long 

as it has the required the requisite provisions 

that are set forth in the regulation/ that's 

sufficient. So you can have a little bit different 

6 form from/ you know/ Wells Fargo versus Bank of 

7 America versus/ you know/ some other lender/ but 

8 they do have to contain the provisions that the 

9 regulation require. 

10 

11 

12 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. Thank you. 

Ms. Minke. 

MS. MINKE: I'm Janet Minke; I'm here 

13 speaking on behalf of TLTA in response to the 

14 discussion of revision of P-35. 

15 And what I would like to do/ if it's 

16 all right with you/ Mr. Durden/ is I actually have 

17 a copy of one of these affidavits that was sent to 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

one of our agents last week. They elected not to 

sign it and/ therefore/ the deal did not close in 

their office; it was closed in another title agent 

in their county who was willing to sign it. 

So this is an issue that does fall 

under regulation. If we have a regulation that 

permits it/ then everybody can do it and they make 

up their own minds. We feel like the agent who 
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1 

2 

3 

4 
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7 

8 

9 

elected to do this was in violation of P-35. But 

the buyer and seller got their deal closed; our 

agent just decided not to take the risk. 

Here lS what this one says; this is 

one that is Sun Trust Mortgage. They were the 

servicer on this particular one and, actually, this 

is what was sent to me to review by our agent. 

Settlement Agent up at the top, 

Affidavit of Arms-Length Transaction. So that's 

10 what they're trying to get at but they go a little 

11 bit further. 

12 All parties relevant to this 

13 transaction attest that it is an arms-length 

14 transaction, meaning that the transaction has been 

15 negotiated by unrelated parties and that the sale 

16 price is based on fair market value of the 

17 property. Buyer and seller are acting in his or 

18 

19 

her own self interest. Those signing this 

affidavit as agents for buyer, seller, or both, are 

20 acting in the best interests of their respective 

21 principle, blank, hereinafter referred to as 

22 Settlement Agent and/or Affiant, being duly sworn, 

23 deposes and says that he/she is facilitating the 

24 closing and legal transfer of title and ownership 

25 from the sellers of the property identified as, 
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1 blank, street address, to the buyers in a short 

2 sale transaction. 

3 I want to stop because I have my 

4 first problem with this, in that they are now 

5 asking a settlement agent to represent themselves 

6 as an agent of the buyer or the seller in the 

7 transaction, and as a party to the transaction; 

8 whereas my understanding of escrow is that the 

9 settlement agent is a neutral third party and is 

10 neither a party to the transaction nor an agent for 

11 any party to the transaction. 

12 So I'm not a lawyer; I'm not trying 

13 

14 

15 

to quote the law or cite the law here. I'm just a 

very logical teacher/trainer and this seems to 

violate escrow. So I told her that when she was 

16 asking me should she sign. 

17 Affiant further says that no party to 

18 the sales contract, including buyer, seller's agent 

19 or buyer's agent, is a relative of, business 

20 associate of, or shares any business interest with 

21 the seller. 

22 Affiant further states that there are 

23 no hidden agreements, implied terms, or special 

24 understandings between seller, buyer, seller's 

25 agent or buyer's agent, which have not been made a 
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1 part of the written sales contract and which have 

2 not been disclosed to all interested parties for 

3 the current sale or subsequent sale of the 

4 above-mentioned property. 

5 Affiant further says there are no 

6 agreements or understandings, oral, written, or 

7 implied, that will permit seller to remain in the 

8 above-mentioned property as renter or to regain 

9 ownership of said property at any time after the 

10 execution of this short sale transaction, except to 

11 the extent that the seller is permitted to remain 

12 as a tenant on the said property for a short term, 

13 as is common and customary in the market, but no 

14 longer than 90 days, in order to facilitate 

15 relocation. 

16 Affiant further says that beyond any 

17 contractual sales commissions owed to the seller's 

18 agent and/or buyer's agent, as reflected on the 

19 final estimated closing statement, no other 

20 parties, buyer or seller, to this short sale 

21 transaction will receive any proceeds from the sale 

22 of the above-mentioned property. 

23 Affiant further says that it is 

24 agreed and understood that the lender'S servicer 

25 and investor are relying upon the statements made 
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1 in this affidavit as consideration for the 

2 reduction of the mortgage payoff amount, which is 

3 secured by a deed of trust or mortgage encumbering 

4 the above-mentioned property. 

5 Affiant further says that the 

6 lender's servicer and investor are indemnified for 

7 any and all loss resulting from any negligent or 

8 intentional misrepresentation made in the 

9 affidavit, including but not limited to repayment 

10 of the amount of the reduced payoff of the 

11 above-mentioned property. 

12 Affiant further says that it is 

13 understood that any misrepresentation may subject 

14 the responsible party to civil and/or criminal 

15 liability. The certification will survive the 

16 closing of the transaction and the undersigned 

17 declares under penalty of perjury that all 

18 statements made in this affidavit are true and 

19 correct. 

20 My question to the settlement agent, 

21 in determining whether they should sign or not, was 

22 how much due diligence they felt like they needed 

23 to do in very specific questioning of the buyer and 

24 seller and buyer's agents and seller's agents to 

25 feel like they've gotten all of the possible hidden 
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1 

2 

3 

things that might be going on out into the open so 

that they would decide then whether or not they 

could sign this thing. Because if they 

4 intentionally do it, then it's very bad, but 

5 negligence might mean that they didn't do enough 

6 due diligence in digging into what was going on to 

7 find it out. 

8, So the concern here is that they're 

9 going outside of the bounds of standard escrow, by 

10 representing themselves to be an agent, and they 

11 are assuming liability for things that ordinarily 

12 would be totally outside the scope of their 

13 knowledge, their skill and the transaction for 

14 which they're being hired. 

15 So I have some grave concerns. This 

16 happened to be one where the agent was told it,·,-was 

17 a Fannie/Freddie requirement and-if they didn't 

18 sign the affidavit, they couldn't close the deal. 

19 After reading my review, which simply said this is 

20 your liability as an agent; this is not something 

21 you would have any backup from an underwriter 

22 because this has nothing to do with title insurance 

23 

24 

25 

on the property. You need to make a decision as a 

settlement agent about whether you're willing to 

assume the liability. They elected not to, but the 
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deal did get closed in their county. 1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

:MR. DURDEN: And, Janet, before you 

leave, just who all signs that document? 

MS. MINKE: This particular one is 

for the settlement agent to sign. It's been 

6 represented to me that this particular transaction 

7 also involved a separate one that was going to be 

8 signed by the buyer and the seller, and then there 

9 was one for the seller's real estate agent and the 

10 buyer's real estate agent. In some that I've seen, 

11 all the signatures are on one formi this one is 

12 very specifically the settlement agent form. 

:MR • DURDEN : Okay. Thank you. 13 

14 

15 

:MR. RUTLEDGE: Mr. Durden, sort of to 

address your question. In looking at the Freddie 

16 Mac regulation, it says, The affidavit is to be 

17 executed before or at the time of closing by all 

18 borrowers, purchasers, real estate brokers 

19 representing any of the parties, the escrow/closing 

20 agent performing the closing, and the transaction 

21 facilitator facilitating the sale, if any. 

22 

23 

:MR • DURDEN : Where are you, Tom? 

:MR. RUTLEDGE: It is on page if 

24 you're looking at the regulation itself, it's 

25 Page 1 of 2, item -- well, it's right below -- in 
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the paragraph right below Item 7, and it's the last 

sentence of that paragraph. 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

Okay. And Mr. Rothermel. 

MR. ROTHERMEL: John Rothermel wi th 

6 Stewart Title. 

7 I agree with everything everybody 

8 said, except for getting rid of the rule and adding 

9 this in. 

10 I have a different one that says a 

11 lot of the same things, but it comes down to 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

several things that I just wanted to bring up. I 

mean, there are just a number of issues that a 

title company cannot, with any knowledge, opine 

about. I mean, one of them is: There is no 

agreement, understanding or contract relating to 

the sale or a subsequent sale not disclosed to the 

lender. How do we know what was disclosed to the 

lender. 

None of the signatories will receive 

any proceeds or remuneration, other than shown on 

this settlement statement. We know what we're 

going to disburse within our closing, but we don't 

have any idea what may be going on outside the 

closing three days from now in somebody's alley. 
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No other offers to buy at a higher 

price. How in the world can we, who search the 

title records, have any clue about that? I agree 

with Janet, I don't think there is any due 

diligence that can get you to a place where you're 

signing something like that. 

Some of the other lenders are also 

adding in a requirement for us to provide 1099 IRS 

reporting forms for everybody who gets something 

out of the closing: The surveyor, the real estate 

agent. I mean, these things, because they are not 

standardized, can have anything the lender wants to 

shift any liability that they have for anything to 

the title company. 

And the business about not closing 

for another 12 or 24-months is not going to stop 

anything. If you're in a huge county, you mayor 

may not have any liability for closing a 

transaction within 12 months. Maybe if you're in 

Bert's county where there is only a couple of 

agents, you might be the one they come back to and 

you would be able to say no, I won't do that. You 

just don't have any way of doing what they want in 

order to -- and the one that I have specifically 

says that you're doing it under penalties of 
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1 perjury, which is a criminal situation, and it's 

2 also what has been spoken to before. 

3 So our recommendation is that there 

4 be a bulletin or that the rule -- if you're going 

5 to change the rule, change it to add any form of 

6 short sale affidavit that covers these kinds of 

7 things. Not that they won't come along with 

8 another version as other stuff we might be back to 

9 you with, because if you just said a short sale 

10 affidavit, nobody will know what that is in five 

11 years, but this kind of indemnity is not part of 

12 our business. 

13 Thank you. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

:MR • DURDEN: Thank you. 

Is there anyone else that would like 

to provide comments on Agenda Item 2012-91? 

:MR. DAY: Mr. Durden, Aaron Day with 

TLTA. If I could just add and emphasize that we 

call these, by custom, regulations but I would 

quibble with that; I would say they're more 

guidelines. This is not coming from the FHFA, this 

is coming from Freddie Mac, which is a private 

entity; although, very much integrated with the 

federal government. I would urge this not to be 

treated as coming from on high from a federal 
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regulatory authority. 

Thank you. 

:MR • DURDEN : Thank you. 

Anyone else wishing to comment on 

2012-91? 

Ms. Waitt has a question. 

MS. WAITT: I'm not sure who this is 

for; maybe Ms. Minke, if she's still here. 

I'm wondering if in the example that 

you mentioned, where the sale went through because 

one title agent would sign this and another title 

agent would not, so one lost the business. My 

question is if the law was on the books, and it 

was, P-35, yet Freddie Mac still required it, what 

would make Freddie Mac listen to what our rule is, 

or what would make them pay attention to a bulletin 

if they chose not to? 

MS. MINKE: Well, I think that's an 

excellent question. And there was some illusion to 

there possibly needing to be some statutory 

rewording so that it would actually appear as a 

statutory law as opposed to a Department 

regulation. 

It isn't impossible to imagine that 

the Department regulation might be rewritten to 
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include references to the statute that were brought 

up earlier, so that it would be clear that there 

was a statutory mandate there with regard to no 

certifications, no indemnifications because of the 

monoline requirements, because of the no mortgage 

guaranty and so forth, which would make it easier 

for a title agent, who is not a lawyer, to be able 

to send the regulation to a servicer and say this 

is a state law; therefore, we understand that you 

have the ability to give a waiver. If there is a 

state law, we have a state law. 

So, I mean, that would just be my 

thoughts on it, because sending a regulation to a 

serVlcer probably isn't going to do any good. 

They tried to push back on this. 

Again, they would have had to go higher than the 

lady they were dealing with, I'm sure, because she 

had a checklist and it was on her checklist: This 

is a Fannie/Freddie short sale; therefore, it 

doesn't close without the affidavit. But it would 

have had to go to a supervisory level. But 

eventually, it would get to the servicers and they 

would know that Texas was a state that had a 

statutory prohibition and then I think it would 

we would quit seeing it as often coming into the 
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closing offices. 

I do want to add one more thing 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

that's just sort of concerning to me, if I may, and 

it has to do with sort of what we're talking about 

here. We're talking about mortgage fraud as if we 

6 were involved in closing a fraudulent mortgage 

7 loan, which that's not what this is. 

8 This is a situation where the lender, 

9 who has an underwater -- typically, they will not 

10 do a short sale unless the borrower is behind In 

11 their payments. So they have an underwater 

12 mortgage and they have done their risk management 

13 to determine that it is more beneficial to them to 

14 sell at a short payoff than to go through the 

15 foreclosure process, repossess the home, and then 

16 do it on a resale. 

17 So they're very concerned about what 

18 the market value is and what their cost of a sale 

19 would be and legitimately all of those things. But 

20 they've made a business decision to go through with 

21 this and they're the ones that, in theory, did the 

22 due diligence in order to determine whether or not 

23 to go through with the business decision. 

24 If the concern is that the settlement 

25 agent might be in on the deal to defraud the short 
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1 sale lender out of potential profit, if they went 

2 through with foreclosure and could resell it, if 

3 that's what they're trying to get at, they can 

4 certainly condition their payoff with some 

5 instructions to the settlement agent that says if 

6 you know of these three things, don't close the 

7 transaction. Then if it's closed and they can 

8 prove that the settlement agent knew about this 

9 stuff, then they would have recourse under some 

10 other type of law without going to this where there 

11 is a personal indemnity and they're talking about 

12 negligence and that sort of thing. 

13 So I think they have possibly some 

14 other ways to get at a settlement agent who is 

15 behaving improperly and assisting buyers and 

16 sellers and possibly defrauding the short sale 

17 lender without going this route. So I don't think 

18 we're -- none of us here I think are trying to say 

19 we hope settlement agents can get away with, you 

20 know, helping short sale buyer and sellers defraud 

21 the lenders; I don't think that's where we're 

22 trying to go. 

23 

24 

25 

MR. DURDEN: Right. Thank you. 

Mr. Day. 

MR. DAY: Yes, Mr. Durden, if I could 
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answer Ms. Waitt's question. 

MR. DURDEN: Sure. 

1 

2 

3 MR. DAY: We think it would be very 

4 helpful to have the Commissioner come out in some 

5 overt way, either a letter to Freddie or to the 

6 regulator, or a bulletin to agents, because what 

7 we're dealing with is a communication issue. 

8 Folks, especially the folks that our agents deal 

9 with every day on the lending side, they are going 

10 

11 

12 

13 

through checking boxes. And you put a law or a 

regulation in front of them, their answer is I'm 

not a lawyer and this is what I need to close this 

deal. However, if you put a bulletin in front of 

14 them that has plain language in it saying we are 

15 aware of this issue and we are applying P-35 to 

16 this particular fact scenario and there is no 

17 question about it, that communication piece would 

18 be extremely helpful in the marketplace. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

Anyone else wishing to provide 

comments on Agenda Item 2012-91? 

Thank you, Mr. Carter, for bringing 

that issue to our consideration. And that 

concludes your agenda items, except for the one 

that we deferred. Is that correct? 
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MR. CARTER: That's correct. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. Well, then, at 

this time let's move to Agenda Item 2012-40. And, 

again, I would recognize Mr. Carter on that agenda 

item. 

MR. CARTER: Thank you. This agenda 

7 item, which was originally filed by the Texas Land 

8 Title Association, concerns our Rule P-53, which is 

9 a rule prohibiting rebating, which is the practice 

10 of title agents giving a thing of value to a 

11 producer in order to get business referrals from 

12 that producer. 

13 Because we set the premium rate in 

14 Texas, agents and companies can't compete with each 

15 other based on the premium or based on the price 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

that they're going to charge. In addition, most 

home buyers aren't particularly savvy about the 

benefits of using one agent over another, and so 

they rely on their real estate agent to steer them 

to a particular title agency. 

Because title agents and title 

companies cannot compete based on price, they then 

compete to win the favor of real estate agents so 

there will be referrals of business to them. This 

is addressed in Statute 2502.055, but this issue 
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has a very long history; it predates my coming to 

title in 1997. Even prior to my arrival in the 

3 title office, we were hearing that the statute, 

4 which went under a different number at that time, 

5 was extremely difficult to enforce because of a 

6 very large exception in the statute for legal 

7 promotional and educational activities. 

8 As you know, the title office has a 

9 licensing wing and a complaints wing and an 

10 examinations wing; we do not have an enforcement 

11 wing, so we refer complaints, typically, to the 

12 Enforcement area to prosecute disciplinary actions 

13 against agents or underwriters who are violating 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

our statutes or rules. And the feedback that we 

got was it would be more helpful if we had 

something a little clearer than the statute, 

setting out what particular things constitute 

rebates. And so then Commissioner Bomer issued 

Bulletin 158, which set out particular activities 

that would be considered to be rebates. 

We then had a problem in trying to 

enforce a bulletin that didn't have the same weight 

as a rule. So we drafted and enacted Procedural 

Rule P-53, Version One. We did a lot of outreach 

to industry, we did some frequently asked question 
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conference that TLTA sponsored, even spoke to a 

group in a movie theater here. I also visited 
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4 several real estate agent organizations to talk to 

5 them about it. 

6 And the ultimate result of P-53, 

7 Version One, was that while we did obtain some 

8 consent orders, we never actually got any orders 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

out of a contested case from SOAR. The feedback 

that we heard was that P-53 needed to be revised, 

needed to be adjusted. 

So we worked with industry to come up 

with what I call P-53, Version Two. And using that 

revised version of P-53, we have successfully 

obtained consent orders from a number of parties 

16 who were engaged in rebating activity. However, 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

those efforts have been unsuccessful moving beyond 

the consent order stage. In other words, if we've 

taken a case to SOAR, while we might win at the 

SOAR level, we don't have such good luck on appeal. 

There are two developments that have 

caused this issue to come to the forefront for us 

recently. One is that in a recent legislative 

session, the legislature expanded the scope, 

arguably, of the exception in the statute; whereas, 

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE 
333 GUADALUPE, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78714-9104 



169 

it previously excepted legal promotional and 1 

2 

3 

4 

educational activities, now it only excepts or 

now it excepts promotional and educational 

activities. So the word Legal has been taken out. 

5 When I first carne to title, in 

6 addition to being told that title was different, I 

7 was told with respect to rebating itself that the 

8 exception for legal, promotional and educational 

9 activities meant, basically, that you could give 

10 anything to an agent but just not cocaine. So with 

11 the deletion of the word Legal, I'm not sure where 

12 it leaves us on that, but that's one problem. 

13 We still have the exception of 

14 promotional and educational activities, and the 

15 word Promotional is especially troubling because 

16 one way of looking at this is that any rebate, any 

17 kickback, is promotional in nature. And we'll hear 

18 that argument often, both at SOAR cases and 

19 further. 

20 The final development, recent 

21 development, has been that we won a case at SOAR 

22 and were awarded the $45,000 fine against an agent 

23 for rebating activities, which involved providing 

24 

25 

property profiles to real estate agents. If you 

ever sell a house, your real estate agent may bring 
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1 you a lot of fancy marketing materials; a lot of 

2 times they've gotten those marketing materials from 

3 an agent, who then reports those expenses into the 

4 rate base for purposes of setting rates. 

5 The problem with rebating is that 

6 this recent court decision overturned the SOAH 

7 decision, which had awarded us a fine for that 

8 particular activity, and grafted onto the statute a 

9 requirement that we demonstrate a quid pro quo, or 

10 this for that, in a rebating scenario. In addition 

11 to there being an exception for anything that's 

12 promotional, we now have to furnish some kind of 

13 proof of a quid pro quo. And I think that you 

14 could probably take notice of the fact that it's 

15 very unlikely to be found in any sort of a direct 

16 way. 

17 So between the expanded statutory 

18 exemption and now the quid pro quo requirement, we 

19 will have a very difficult time enforcing P-53. 

20 P-53 requires a lot of resources. A lot of time 

21 we'll just get an anonymous complaint; it might 

22 just be a slip of paper or a copy of an 

23 

24 

25 

advertisement. We then have to investigate that. 

It's often a tit for tat; where competitors are 

complaining against one another for having lost a 
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deal because someone took someone else to lunch. 

So we wind up working a lot of 

complaints, referring a lot of complaints to 

Enforcement and Enforcement spends a lot of time 

and money prosecuting those cases/ a lot of staff 

hours. I flew to Richmond, Virginia, and spent a 

7 summer there one weekend dealing with a bankruptcy 

8 case involving a rebating issue/ but we don't have 

9 much to show for it. 

10 I hear from industry'that it has been 

11 a good thing because it helps them say no; it gives 

12 them something to show to a real estate to 

13 discourage them from leaning on title agents so 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

much. But as a regulator/ what I see is that we're 

drowning in P-53 complaints that we're not able to 

prosecute to what would be a successful resolution, 

from our perspective. 

TLTA's original Item 40 I think was a 

good-faith effort on the part of TLTA to respond to 

the resource problems that we were having, and I 

appreciate them making that effort. It would have 

called for there to be communication between the 

complainer and the person that they're complaining 

about and possible referral to some sort of an 

oversight board before it becomes a formal 
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effort. 
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But since the time of that, we've had 

to deal with now the quid pro quo requirement and, 

for that reason, there has been an interest in just 

maybe repealing P-53 in its entirety. I mean, to 

7 be honest, the changes that the legislature has 

8 made to the statute have not been a loud signal to 

9 us that they want more of these prosecutions; it's 

10 actually made it more difficult to push them -- to 

11 push through P-53 type cases. 

12 I do agree, and I'm sure you'll hear 

13 from industry about this, that they perceive a need 

14 for help from us In saying no, and we've tried to 

15 

16 

17 

18 

glve them that help. They don't want to make too 

much of an issue about it because they're afraid of 

being blackballed when it comes to the other real 

estate agents in their area. Like, if they file a 

19 complaint against someone who is giving something 

20 to real estate agents, they're afraid that the real 

21 estate agents will get wind of that and not send 

22 business to the agent that is now complaining about 

23 it. 

24 So when we dealt with the first 

25 verSlon of 53, at one point no one was really 
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1 wanting to come up and say yes, we want P-53. And 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

so one of the speakers just asked people in the 

audience, and it was far more packed than it is 

today, but asked audience members to just stand up 

and not be identified if they were in favor of 

P-53. And I remember sitting at this table and not 

knowing what to expect when I turned around, but 

everyone was standing up. I've been around long 

enough and I've gotten enough consistent feedback 

to know that I am no Gregory Beck, but that's my To 

Kill of Grackle moment. 

My experience in regulating the title 

insurance industry has been that the vast majority 

of agents are trying to do the right thing. And 

that, to me, is almost -- it creates more heartburn 

for me than the resource issue; I mean, it is a 

tough drain on our resources. But what really 

18 bothers me more than that is that the vast majority 

19 of real estate -- of title agents who are trying to 

20 do the right thing and are trying to say no, when 

21 pressured to give rebates, lose market share to 

22 those few agents and direct operations who are 

23 willing to violate P-53 because they know that 

24 we'll have this quid pro quo problem and we've got 

25 the problem with the big exception for promotional 
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1 activities of any kind. 

2 I think that's what is behind the 

3 desire to consider a repeal of P-53 in its entirety 

4 and to, essentially, invite the legislature to give 

5 us a statute that we can work with in a more 

6 practical way. 

7 Those are my comments on this 

8 particular agenda item. 

9 MR. DURDEN: Thank you, Mr. Carter. 

10 Let me ask you just one question; I think it's 

11 probably an obvious question and you've kind of 

12 touched on it, I believe. But how would the repeal 

13 of P-53 affect the industry? 

14 MR. CARTER: That is a real danger, 

15 that is a real danger, and I think you'll hear 

16 about that. I think that real estate agents might 

17 interpret the repeal of P-53 to mean that there is 

18 a green light now for rebating activity. So that 

19 is a danger. I think there is something to be said 

20 for having a rule in place that at least 

21 discourages real estate agents from applying that 

22 kind of pressure. 

23 The problem is that, again, there are 

24 folks who know about the exceptions and the 

25 loopholes, and so they know that, eventually, they 
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1 will prevail in these cases. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

MR. DURDEN: Right. And you still 

have the statute out there. Is that correct? 

MR. CARTER: That's correct. 

MR. DURDEN: That addresses the 

issue? 

MR. CARTER: Yes. 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

I'll just take these as I have them 

here, in no particular order. The first name I 

have is Bill Kramer. 

MR. KRAMER: Good afternoon. Bill 

Kramer for Republic Title of Texas, also speaking 

for a group of title companies called Title 

Professionals Association. I've been in the title 

16 business longer than Bert Massey; he's just 

17 starting his fortieth year. 

18 P-53 and rebating has been, and even 

19 before P-53, has been an issue in the title 

20 business for years and years. And Rob has done a 

21 great job explaining the pressures and difficulty. 

22 Just a few moments ago a plea was 

23 made to the Department ab0ut the pressures that 

24 were put on us by the federal government -- not the 

25 federal government but a governmental agency or a 
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1 

2 

near quasi agency, about signing some things that 

are really way beyond the pail. The nature of 

3 competition in the title business requires, In this 

4 particular area, a constant and continuing 

5 regulation. 

6 I still have and still refer to Rob's 

7 telephone comments that he made when the second 

8 P-53 was corning out, and we still read it to this 

9 day because the regulator, who is Rob, made it 

10 clear about certain issues and certain behaviors 

11 where we knew we could go and where we know we 

12 could not go. 

13 P-53 has been around now for a while; 

14 the word P-53 means something to every real estate 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

agent in this state. They have heard it now enough 

and they know that it's there; they are afraid of 

it. They constantly call and ask: Well, could I 

do this or could I do this; or I'm talking to 

someone else at another title company and they said 

20 they would do this for me. I've been closing with 

21 you, do you think it's okay. Naturally I tell them 

22 it's not okay. 

23 The big issue that we were dealing 

24 with when P-53 first carne out was a phenomenon 

25 called Desktop Publishing. I don't know if you've 
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heard about it, but Desktop Publishing was pressure 

by real estate agents to title companies to do all 

kinds of printing for them and farming for them and 

mailouts and postcards and everything else. And In 

the metropolitan areas everybody did it, so you 

gain no competitive advantage and your costs went 

up. 

P-53 killed this Desktop Publishing; 

it's not around anymore. And I'm telling you in 

the metropolitan areas -- San Antonio, Houston, 

11 Dallas, Ft. worth -- there are hundreds of 

12 thousands of dollars being saved because there is 

13 no Desktop Publishing. 

14 There were entertainment events in 

15 the Dallas area in which our company itself spent 

16 over $250,000 to do the Byron Nelson Golf 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Tournament. We don't do that anymore and we 

haven't done it for years; since P-53. 

1- understand Rob's frustrations. I 

understand the disappointment in the Enforcement 

Division with the one loss that they've had against 

the many victories that they have won. But it's 

not time to throw out P-53. Just because we've 

failed with what we have now doesn!t mean we should 

give up; it's a lot of resources. What Rob and his 
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staff get to see is the worst of our industry. The 

bitching and the moaning and all the complaining 

about competition is not attractive; it doesn't 

make us look good. 

But what we should do is try and work 

one more time; P-53, Version Three, and let's -- we 

can get it right. Every time we do it, it gets 

better. So I really think that we should do 

everything in our power to keep it on the books. 

Right now, even with the court case with respect to 

property profile, P-53 is living and breathing and 

preventing excesses right this minute. If the 

Department kills P-53, they'll be allover it. 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. Before you 

leave, Mr. Kramer, I want to get your thoughts on 

one other thing. And I understand what you're 

saying about the successes of P-53; I guess part of 

what Mr. Carter has said is it seems like now there 

is a move with the court case and the recent change 

in statute, maybe there is even a directional 

change where there is not as much emphasis put on 

eradicating those issues. And I just wanted to get 

your thoughts on that. 

MR. KRAMER: Well, you know, you pick 

your battles. And I'm not trying to be critical 
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1 here, because I got a lot of respect for Rob; he's 

2 been here a long time and I've been around a long 

3 

4 

5 

6 

time. But property profile was not the battle to 

fight. 

I can give you -- I can quote you -

and we were under an Enforcement order ourselves 

7 while all this was going on. We supplied a lot of 

8 materials to the Department. 

9 So the thing is that there are some 

10 really big ticket items and there are some really 

11 broad cuts that can be made. And there is some 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

other things that can be done even on the reporting 

side that I've already discussed with Rob and Title 

Professionals has discussed with Rob, and we can 

get a workable solution within the statutory 

structure. 

Quid pro quo has always been out 

there. We have heard about quid pro quo from day 

one; we have a pretty good understanding of it. 

There is a point where I think you can shift the 

21 burden of proof on quid pro quo. If a title 

22 

23 

24 

25 

company takes a group of commercial clients to 

Hawaii and spends 25, 30, $40,000 on that trip, I 

think you can infer quid pro quo. But when a title 

company makes available to all real estate agents, 
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1 irrespective of a deal and the general public, a 

2 property profile that may cost $3, well, you know, 

3 that's another battle. 

4 A lot of the response has to do with 

5 the way we behave toward each other. I think some 

6 of the things that were in the TLTA rule would be 

7 very helpful. If title companies knew who was 

8 complaining, they could talk to each other. We 

9 have never filed a complaint against another title 

10 company. If we had a complaint, we just went and 

11 called the head guy; whether he did anything or 

12 not, that's all we did. We didn't want to bother 

13 the Department. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. Thank you. 

Next I have Alex Gonzales. 

14 

15 

16 MR. GONZALES: I'm going to have to 

17 lower it down a bit, I take it. Deputy 

18 Commissioner Durden, General Counsel Waitt, 

19 Assistant Chief Clerk Gutierrez; saying those names 

20 with those titles makes me feel very old, I don't 

21 mind telling you. The only thing worse would be if 

22 I heard Deputy Commissioner Muckerheide. I know 

23 you're busy and you didn't come here to listen to 

24 me jabber. 

25 I represent Title Professionals 
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Association; it is an association that's made up of 

the larger underwriters in this state and some of 

the larger metropolitan title agencies. You don't 

hear from us much because the TLTA does a great job 

and we only mobilize when there is an issue of 

urgency, and we consider this an issue of urgency. 

Back in 2004, we were also involved 

8 with P-53, Version Two. Now, the thing to remember 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

about that rule is that it was a negotiated rule; 

it was set by the Commissioner for negotiated 

rulemaking, and we had participating the Texas Land 

Title Association, Title Professionals Association, 

the Texas Association of Builders, the Texas 

14 Association of Realtors, and OPIC. Rob and his 

15 staff were not direct parties but they certainly 

16 provided very good guidance and comments in that 

17 

18 

process. So it's not a special purpose rule, it's 

a rule that was negotiated. We had a lot of talent 

19 involved during that process, and the Realtors, the 

20 builders, other producers, they all thought that 

21 this was a good rule. 

22 And, in fact, if you go on the 

23 varlOUS real estate agent websites, almost every 

24 one of them has on there a P-53 guidance page where 

25 they'll say do not even bother asking title agents 
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1 for X, Y and Z, because of P-53 -- I didn't mean 

2 for that to rhyme; but that's what it says. 

3 And also on the title agents' side, 

4 if you go to Heritage Title's web page, you'll 

5 notice that they have a lot of information on there 

6 about P-53, and they're just telling title 

7 producers we can't do this, so don't ask us to do 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

it. So it does have a beneficial affect. 

Now, it's clear that the Texas 

legislature intended for the Commissioner to adopt 

a rule. This is way back in 1997, in the and I 

don't have the bill number but when Normal was 

changed to Legal, there was some impetus for the 

legislature to expand their definition. And the 

15 response back in that particular legislation was 

16 that the Commissioner was in the best position to 

17 interpret what was legal promotional expenses. 

18 Bill did such a good job that he took 

19 away most of my ammo, so I'm going to go through 

20 this very, very quickly. 

21 Now, one thing that Bill addressed, 

22 and I want to address again, lS that P-53 is very 

23 much a road map; so it's like a stop sign or any 

24 

25 

other traffic sign. And just because there is not 

a whole lot of tickets being given out doesn't mean 
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1 that the stop sign doesn't work. 

2 So what is happening now ln the 

3 market place is that there is a lot of self 

4 policing. And I hung on something that Rob said: 

5 A vast majority of title agents in this state want 

6 to do the right thing. Okay. A vast majority of 

7 title agents in this state want to do the right 

8 thing. And I couldn't agree with him more. There 

9 isn't anybody in here that doesn't want to do the 

10 right thing. 

11 Rob's staff does an excellent job. I 

12 have a lot of clients, we get the ding letter from 

13 his staff, we get a warning letter and they stop 

14 that activity. It only takes a warning letter, it 

15 only takes a small fine. It doesn't have to be the 

16 $100,000 fine; a $5,000 fine will get the same 

17 result. Sometimes -- you know, I'm a lawyer; I try 

18 to go to the client, hey, let's go for a dec action 

19 or something like that. They don't want anything 

20 to do with it. They say no, we got the warning 

21 letter, we're going to stop it; it's not worth it 

22 to us. That's what P-53 does. 

23 Now, there is one other point that 

24 I don't think has been addressed before. 

25 Section 2502 was patterned after RESPA, but it does 
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1 not mirror RESPA. There is an important 

2 difference; and that is, the section on defrayment 

3 of expenses. So RESPA has language that says the 

4 defrayment of expenses of a producer is illegal; 

5 it's not in the Texas statute. What P-53 does, and 

6 P-53 is really about subsidies; it's about 

7 subsidies and about defrayment of expenses. It 

8 fills in that gap. 

9 If you repeal it, what is going to 

10 happen is that Section 2706(d) (6) of RESPA will 

11 kick In. Okay. Because what will happen is you'll 

12 have a regulatory gap in the Texas statute and the 

13 Texas rule, the state rules and regulations, so 

14 you'll have that void. And what will happen is for 

15 that particular type of activity, RESPA will 

16 preempt the Texas regulation. And there isn't 

17 anybody in here that wants the federal government 

18 more involved ln this state. 

19 My final point is I know there has 

20 been some question about the procedural notice, 

21 whether there was adequate notice for us to be here 

22 talking about this right now. I don't -- I'm going 

23 to let others address that. 

24 My entreaty is a little bit more 

25 practical; and that is, you know, we had heard that 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

TLTA had submitted a letter requesting withdrawal. 

I think the general consensus out there was okay, 

it's not going to be addressed. We were wrong; I 

understand that. I understand we should have taken 

care of our business better. But the net effect 

6 is -- for instance, I didn't get hired until 

7 yesterday afternoon and we didn't mobilize Title 

8 Professionals until yesterday afternoon, and we 

9 have a lot of information that we think we can 

10 provide to the Commissioner that would be helpful 

11 in making -- in helping her make a decision in this 

12 case. 

13 So we would request that this 

14 particular item be left open for a time, you know, 

15 of the Commissioner's discretion that we could 

16 maybe provide further information and perhaps, just 

17 perhaps, we could reconvene the negotiated 

18 rulemaking procedure. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

That's all I have. Do you have any 

questions of me? 

MR. DURDEN: I do not have any 

questions. Thank you, Mr. Gonzales. 

Next I have up Mr. Kergin Bedell. 

shouldn't have it. Oh, I think this is Agenda 

Item 53, not P-53; my apologies. 

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE 
333 GUADALUPE, AUSTIN, TEXAS 78714-9104 

I 
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that one right. 
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1 

2 

3 MAYOR MASSEY: Thank you, Mr. Durden. 

4 For the record again, my name is Bert Massey; I 

5 speak now strictly on behalf of my company, the 

6 Brown County Abstract Company. 

7 There is a reason for that. With the 

8 withdrawal of the proposed rules under P-40, we did 

9 not understand, nor believe, that we had adequate 

10 notice that Rule P-53 and the possible repeal 

11 thereof would be under discussion today. It is my 

12 firm belief that had we had such notice, the room 

13 would be full of rural agents, such as myself, who 

14 consider that rule to be one of the great 

15 blessings. 

16 I've already bored you with how long 

I've been around in the business. I'll bore you a 17 

18 

19 

little further and tell you what you already know; 

and that is, that I've testified many times at 

20 hearings and I have, as an attorney, represented an 

21 organization of primarily but not exclusively rural 

22 title agents many times in hearings before the old 

23 State Insurance Board and various Commissioners, so 

24 I know what we bring to the table and I know what 

25 went into drafting this rule. Mr. Carter did a 
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1 great job of describing it. I did not get to see 

2 him bleed at the movie theater or listen to him 

3 bleed on a conference call, but I know how 

4 difficult it was to do. 

5 Nevertheless, though we're quite 

6 concerned about the lack of notice and, with all 

7 due respect believe that a full-day hearing on 

8 P-53 could easily be held, I want to say a few 

9 

10 

things very quickly. We do say that it is a needed 

rule and it is an enforceable rule. If the rule lS 

11 repealed, there will still be complaints for 

12 Mr. Carter's overworked staff to deal with, they'll 

13 just be simply based on the statute, as opposed to 

14 the lack of a procedural rule. 

15 We've heard comments that there have 

16 been criticisms of the enforceability, not only of 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

the statute but of the rule. Those kind of 

arguments are made every day In criminal court 

across the state of Texas. And just because you 

lost a case, I don't know of any prosecutors' 

office that is 100 percent successful. Those 

you learn from your losses and from your mistakes 

and you do better the next time in picking those 

battles that need to be fought that might go to the 

court room. 
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The case that has been alluded to is 

not precedent; that's a district court case. It's 

not even reported in the Southwestern Reporter. So 

while I thought the decision was justified, which 

doesn't make any difference what I think; 

nevertheless, that's not a precedent that guides 

absolutely as legal precedent to guide the 

Enforcement staff. 

This is a consumer protection rule, 

as well as an industry protection rule. It is an 

effort to protect consumers from unscrupulous title 

companies who maybe can't do the job -- there lS a 

handful of them, at least and they would give 

blandishments to the realtor or the lender in order 

to get customers in their office where they would 

be poorly served. 

By the same token, it is a rule that 

levels the playing field in the industry. If 

you're in business, in primarily rural Texas, many 

of the title insurance activities that you are 

involved in now come to you by referral, from 

underwriters, large independent agents who, as far 

as I know, legitimately have marketed their 

services to nationwide lenders; the five major 

banks, for example, and their acolytes. And the 
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1 bankers being lazy, they refer the business to an 

2 office in Dallas or Houston; and, of course, they 

3 don't have a title plant in Brownwood, so I get the 

4 business in Brownwood for a share of the premium. 

5 How bad is that going to 

6 deteriorate -- and that's legitimate; how bad lS 

7 that going to deteriorate if we don't have a rule 

8 to enforce what those marketers of title insurance 

9 

10 

business can use in their marketing. It's a fair 

competition rule. To withdraw it, in my opinion, 

11 would be enforceable and, in my opinion, it 

12 comports with the letter and the spirit of the 

13 statute. 

14 Thank you. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

11R. DURDEN: Thank you. I jus t have 

one question of clarification for you, Mr. Massey, 

if I may. And I think Mr. Gonzales addressed this 

to some degree. But if you don't have P-53, we 

still have the statute. 

MAYOR MASSEY: Correct. 

11R. DURDEN: And isn't that statute a 

consumer protection vehicle; I mean, doesn't it 

serve the same purpose as the rule? 

MAYOR MASSEY: Well, it's certainly 

designed to, but I think Mr. Gonzales is correct 
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1 that the statute contemplates -- or the statute was 

2 written in such a way that the legislature 

3 contemplated there would be rulernaking by the 

4 Commissioner of Insurance, who the regulation of 

5 insurance is ceded to under the Insurance Code. 

6 Now, we wouldn't be completely out of 

7 luck. But if things need to be changed in the 

8 statute, that's a function of the legislature. 

9 Withdrawing the rule is not going to make those 

10 changes. 

11 

12 

13 

MR. DURDEN: Right. Okay. 

MAYOR MASSEY: Thank you, sir. 

MR. DURDEN: Thank you. 

14 The next card I have is Cass Burton; 

15 Mr. Burton. 

16 MR. BURTON: Thank you, Mr. Durden, 

17 Ms. Waitt; good afternoon. My name is Cass Burton; 

18 I'm with the Austin firm of Burton & Hyde, and I'm 

19 outside legal counsel for the Texas Land Title 

20 Association. 

21 I've been asked to come today to 

22 testify on the matter that staff added to the 

23 description of Agenda Item 2012-40 that read, "The 

24 Commissioner will also consider whether P-53 should 

25 be modified further or repealed, in light of recent 
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1 court rulings." 

2 While maintaining that the agenda 

3 item has been withdrawn and modification or repeal 

4 of Procedural Rule P-53 is not on the docket today, 

5 we are prepared to discuss the recent court ruling 

6 in Independence Title versus the Texas Department 

7 

8 

of Insurance. TLTA takes the position that this 

case presents no reason to change the rule. On the 

9 contrary, the Court's decision provides guidance 

10 for enforcing the rule in its current form. 

11 Judge Yelenosky's decision did not 

12 find the rule invalid or unworkable, he merely 

13 concluded that the evidence was insufficient to 

14 support the conclusion that Independence Title had 

15 somehow violated the law. The Judge found in the 

16 case before him that there was no substantial 

17 evidence that Independence Title advertised jointly 

18 with Realtors, contributed to their marketing 

19 efforts, contributed to the advertisements, or 

20 otherwise contributed to their costs. He wrote 

21 that there was no evidence that any Realtor had in 

22 the past prepared a Seller Review Package, would 

23 prepare one at his or her own expense if 

24 Independence Title had not done so, or would buy 

25 one. The evidence in the record simply did not 
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1 support the conclusion of law. 

2 But, most importantly to this 

3 discussion today, Judge Yelenosky did provide a 

4 road map -- Mr. Gonzales used a perfect word, road 

5 map -- for proving a rebate violation using the 

6 

7 

8 

existing law and rule. Of course, a written or 

verbal statement offered into evidence, it would 

certainly do the trick; that would be nice. But a 

9 method also exists for showing the quid pro quo. 

10 He writes -- he cites to the Real 

11 Estate Settlement Procedures Act for guidance. The 

12 test -- here is the road map -- When a thing of 

13 value is received repeatedly, repeatedly, and is 

14 connected in any way with the volume or value, the 

15 volume or value, of the business referred, the 

16 receipt of that thing of value is evidence that it 

17 is made pursuant to an agreement or understanding 

18 for the referral of business. 

19 The rule is still very relevant and 

20 very much workable today. And Procedural Rule P-53 

21 

22 

is a very important rule; TLTA is happy to discuss 

it, or any other. TLTA wants to be able to solve 

23 problems, to craft solutions; however, proposed 

24 changes to the Basic Manual should be given due 

25 consideration. TLTA wants to work with all of the 
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1 interested parties, and there is many, to identify 

2 current concerns, discuss all of those potential 

3 solutions, and seek mutually acceptable solutions 

4 to complicated regulatory issues like this one; 

5 because, admittedly, it is very complicated. 

6 This process takes time, though, and 

7 should be accorded proper notice, in accordance 

8 with all of the requirements of the Administrative 

9 Procedures Act, so that TLTA can bring staff's rule 

10 proposal to our membership and allow the body, as a 

11 whole, to consider staff's recommended changes and 

12 the justification for staff's additions or 

13 deletions to the rule text. 

14 For the benefit of the record, I've 

15 brought copies of the Judge's decision letter and 

16 order in this case, so that it's available for your 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

convenience. If I may enter it into evidence. 

MR. DURDEN: You can provide that to 

Ms. Gutierrez. 

MR. BURTON: Thank you, Mr. Durden. 

MR. DURDEN: All right. Thank you, 

Mr. Burton. 

I think that's all the cards I have. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: Mr. Durden, when I 

filed my original card on all of our agenda items, 
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I included this one in the list. 

MR. DURDEN: Okay. That's fine. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: So when you're ready. 

MR. DURDEN: I was going to ask; 

you're not out of luck if I don't have your card. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: Thank you, Mr. Durden. 

Tom Rutledge on behalf of the Texas Land Title 

Association. I want to comment a little bit more 

elaborately on a matter that gives us very deep 

concern. It's been alluded to but I think more 

needs to be said about it; and that is, the 

procedural issue by which we are taking this 

discussion up today. 

Let me preface this by saying that 

TLTA is more than willing to work with any of the 

stakeholders in resolving the issues and concerns 

that surround P-53 and the statute. Our concern 

here today is that we have withdrawn our agenda 

item, which put it on the agenda in the first 

place. It wasn't a request to withdraw it, my 

letter says we withdraw it, period. 

So we're not prepared really to talk 

about the merits of the rule or how it might be 

changed, but what we can talk about is sort of how 

we got here. And it concerns us very much, In 
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terms of what kind of possible precedent we may be 

setting with respect to how agenda items are taken 

up and how amendments or deletions or repealers are 

noticed to the public. And that is our -- that is 

5 the primary focus of my conversation with you 

6 today; and that is, what we believe to be the clear 

7 lack of statutory notice that there may be 

8 considered a repeal of this rule. 

9 We did not propose it, no one else 

10 has specifically proposed it, and the methodology 

11 by which that is done is set forth in statute. 

12 It's not we do it the way we have done it 

13 before, the way everybody else has done it in this 

14 proceeding because the statute required it to be 

15 done a certain way; that is, Section 2001.024 of 

16 the Government Code, Subsection (a) (2), which says, 

17 and I quote, The notice of a proposed rule must 

18 include the text of the proposed rule, except any 

19 portion omitted under Section 2002.014, prepared in 

20 a manner to indicate any words to be added or 

21 deleted from the current text. 

22 Subsection (b) (2) of the same statute 

23 states, "In the notice of a proposed rule that 

24 amends any part of an existing rule, the language 

25 to be deleted must be bracketed and stricken 
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1 through, and the language to be added must be 

2 underlined. " 

3 That's what the statute requires. 

4 That has not happened here with respect to the idea 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

of repealing this rule. The notice, we believe, is 

patently, on its face, inadequate for the 

commissioner to act on this. 

Let me go back and repeat what I said 

earlier. We're not prepared to talk about the 

10 merits of the rule today in this proceeding, but we 

11 are prepared and eager to talk with any of the 

12 stakeholders about how to resolve this, whether or 

13 not the rule should be amended, revised or the 

14 statute changed, revised or added to. We are 

15 always willing to do that and we've made that very 

16 clear from the beginning. 

17 In an effort to make a record on this 

18 issue about notice, because I am really concerned 

19 that we do not set a precedent inadvertently that 

20 will corne back to haunt USi and by that, I mean all 

21 of us. 

22 I have three exhibits that I would 

23 like to offer into the record on this issue of 

24 

25 

notice. I've asked the court reporter to mark 

Exhibits 4, 5 and 6, for the record, so that we 
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1 have a set of examples as to how we have addressed 

2 the' issue of repealers of procedural rules and 

3 other rules in the past. 

4 Exhibit 4 is a copy of Agenda 

5 Item 98-18; it was prepared by Mr. Carter on behalf 

6 of the Texas Department of Insurance staff. And as 

7 you can see in the Justification at the bottom, it 

8 advocated the repeal of Procedural Rule P-35. And 

9 as you can see, as the statute requires, the text 

10 of the rule was written out and struck through, so 

11 that it was very clear notice to anyone who was 

12 looking at the agenda what was going to be the 

13 result of that proposal of the agenda item. 

14 Exhibit 5 is a copy of Agenda 

15 Item 2002-36, which was also prepared by 

16 Mr. Carter on behalf of the staff of the Department 

17 of Insurance, and it would repeal Procedural 

18 Rule P-33. Again, the same procedure was followed, 

19 as required by the statute, so that there would be 

20 adequate notice to anyone who looked at the agenda 

21 item to know that this is exactly what is being 

22 proposed. 

23 And, finally, Agenda Item 6 --

24 or, rather, Exhibit 6, is a copy of Agenda 

25 Item 2006-42 -- it's not marked 42 on this copy but 
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2 

it was 2006-42 -- also prepared by Mr. Carter on 

behalf of the Texas Department of Insurance. And 

3 what is interesting about this particular agenda 

4 item is that it involves Procedural Rule P-53. 

5 Now, when the P-53, Version One, was adopted, it 

6 was in place for a couple of years and then we 

7 undertook to discuss with all the stakeholders 

8 Version Two. When Version Two was adopted, it had 

9 a sunset provision in it and it would, basically, 

10 have sunset the rule within two years. 

11 In the 2006 biennial case, by reason 

12 of this agenda item, Mr. Carter filed this agenda 

13 item striking through the sunset provision that had 

14 been put in the rule when it was readopted in 2004. 

15 And the Justification for that I think is pertinent 

16 to the discussion today, and I would like to quote 

17 it; it's only two sentences, for the record. 

18 "Procedural Rule P-53 was proposed 

19 by the Department and was approved by the 

20 Commissioner at the 2002 biennial hearing to assist 

21 in the implementation of Texas Insurance Code 

22 Chapter 2502, Subchapter B, Rebates and Discounts, 

23 

24 

25 

formerly Article 9.30. Procedural Rule P-53 lS 

scheduled to sunset at 12:01 a.m. on January 1, 

2008. The rule has been useful in the 
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1 implementation of the statute, and this proposal lS 

2 necessary to give permanent effect to P-53." 

3 TLTA wholeheartedly agrees that the 

4 rule has been useful in the implementation of the 

5 statute, as stated in the Justification. But that 

6 is not the specific point that I want to raise; and 

7 that is, if we can undertake -- if the Commissioner 

8 in this proceeding, with this notice, or lack 

9 thereof, can actually repeal a rule, then all we 

10 need to do in future hearings is if we have an 

11 interest in repealing or amending or modifying a 

12 procedural rule, we'll just file an agenda item 

13 that says we think that the Commissioner ought to 

14 consider repealing, modifying or adding to the 

15 procedural rule and name the procedural rule and we 

16 don't have to say anything else. 

17 So we've got a serious concern about 

18 the precedent that that sets, and we don't believe 

19 that the Commissioner, under the lack of notice 

20 that is set forth in this record, could or should 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

repeal a rule. We do think that 

MS. WAITT: Let me set your mind at 

ease. We agree, the Commissioner did not intend 

for this Notice of Hearing to be the notice of 

repeal of the rule. The Commissioner and the Texas 
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1 Department of Insurance will certainly comply with 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

the APA. So when -- if or when a repeal is done, 

there will be a notice in the Texas Register, just 

like with every repeal. 

MR. RUTLEDGE: Thank you very much 

for that. Our problem was we couldn't tell; we 

just didn't know. 

MS. WAITT: Well, the Commissioner 

clearly wants to hear about it, and she wanted to 

10 hear about it in this hearing. But we're not going 

11 to take this hearing and go and say this is 

12 repealed and publish that in the Texas Register. 

13 MR. RUTLEDGE: Okay. Well, I very 

14 much appreciate that and we appreciate the 

15 clarification. I guess by raising it, we've got it 

16 on the record that that's going to be the case and 

17 we're much relieved, and we would like to go 

18 forward with maybe another proceeding that would be 

19 convenient to the parties to discuss the issues 

20 that surround this particular rule and the statute, 

21 and appreciate the opportunity of working with the 

22 staff and with all of the stakeholders in trying to 

23 get that resolved. 

24 With that, I really will shut up. 

25 MR. DURDEN: Okay. I have one 
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additional card; I was clairvoyant. 

Mr. Bedell. 

MR. BEDELL: Kergin Bedell for the 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

Office of Public Insurance Counsel. Good afternoon 

again. 

OPIC agrees with much of what has 

been said today; P-53 is an important rule. We 

8 recognize Mr. Carter's frustration and 

9 Enforcement's frustration with enforcing it at 

10 times, and would be happy to work with TLTA, or any 

11 of the other parties or stakeholders, to improve 

12 P-53 in whatever way and would recommend to the 

13 Commissioner maybe starting a work group to start 

14 that process. 

15 And with that I conclude our 

16 comments, unless there are any questions. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. DURDEN: I have no questions. 

Thank you, Mr. Bedell. 

Mr. Day. 

MR. DAY: Mr. Durden, I would like to 

add one more note. Although I wasn't prepared to 

talk about it, the statutory change was referenced. 

And because of, God rest his soul, Steve Jobs and 

the miracle of Apple, I was able to pull up the 

statute here and refer to the items. 
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It is true that during the last 

legislative session the term Legal was struck, and 

that's the reason why I'm talking now. I think 

it's important for all ears to hear and all eyes to 

see the reason why that was struck, so that there 

is no confusion. There has been concern on many 

party's part that this would create confusion in 

the marketplace, and we've engaged in educational 

activities to make sure that's not the case; at 

least in terms of our world. But let me take this 

11 opportunity to expound upon that and reemphasize 

12 what I've been telling those folks and noting two 

13 very important factors. 

14 Number one, there was legislative 

15 intent read into the record by the House sponsor of 

16 this Bill, Representative Drew Darby. And that was 

17 to the effect that the striking of the word Legal 

18 in no way was meant to modify the existing statute. 

19 It was a clarifying amendment; it was not meant to 

20 change the meaning or purpose or enactment of the 

21 statute, or the operation of the statute. 

22 The second point is that, although 

23 the word Legal was struck, in furtherance of that 

24 point, the sentence, "In modifier and not 

25 prohibited by Subchapter B, Chapter 541," was added 
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1 in. 

2 So that was really a replacement to a 

3 word that was not functioning properly, from the 

4 perspective of the legislature. So the word was 

5 actually replaced with a more specific reference to 

6 get at what the original intent of the word Legal 

7 was; and that is, making sure that it does not 

8 conflict with or is not -- activity is not 

9 prohibited by Subchapter B, Chapter 541. 

10 Thank you. 

11 !1R. DURDEN: Thank you. 

12 Anyone else wishing to provide 

13 comments on Agenda Item 2012-40? 

14 All right. Then I think that 

15 concludes the matters for this hearing. I want to 

16 thank all of the parties, sponsors, commenters, 

17 everyone who provided testimony. I think our staff 

18 recorded us. And, again, just thank you for your 

19 input and for continuing to work with us. 

20 Staff, great job; appreciate you. 

21 And that concludes this hearing; it's 

22 adjourned. Thank you. 

23 

24 

25 

(Whereupon, the hearing was 

adj ourned. ) 
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